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Unfortunately the Board has not bean able to reach 
unanimous decision and report with respect to this complaint.

Howevtr $

the evidence
agree to a great extent upon our ass'tssmflnt of 
The majority of the Board has carefully examined

and assessed the analysis of the facts» the motives 
parties» and the opinions which Lynn Smith expresses in her
dissenting opinion
and sts »  'i

The majority r oik poet a the vory learned
op in ion which she has expressed, but we do not feel

we can agree with her rationale or her ultimate conclusions.
The majority has refrained from writing a treati on the Human

M  mopinions.
the

and from any detailed critique of Lynn Smith's 
The majority confines its remarks to what it considers 

elements of the matter which has been put before us.
considering case law and the large body of the evidence which was

to the Board.

In the result the Board does agree that Susan Jorgensen
was against and wi respect to the
question of pay rates, upon our 

Members of the Board mainly differ is whether the sex of Susan
Jorgensen was the motive or ingredient in the Employer's 
to deny her the further opportunity to perform Group 1 work.

ision

which work will be more extensively referred to later in these
Reasons.

Pursuant to Section 13 (1) of the Human Rights Code
thiB Board of Inquiry was appointed by the Minister of Labour 
on January 31, 1979.



Th« hearings commonest! on April 24« 1979 and continued
on April 25 and June 1. During the hearing on the latter day 
Jack Nichol on behalf of the United Fishermen t Allied Workers' 
Union objected to the composition of the Board upon the grounds
which were stated at some length. Submissions with respect to
the matter were heard on June 1 and June 4 and on July 3. On
August 16, 1979, the Board in a written decision stated that in 
its opinion and in the circumstances and in law, the Board could 
not properly disqualify itself or any of its Members.
Board declined to do so and stated that it intended to
with the hearing of the complaint, 
as a Schedule to these Reasons.

This Æ  *
> iision is a

January 8,

9,

Hearings resumed on January 7, 1980 and continued on
9, January 10, January 11, February 18,

19, March 24 and March 25.
Argument was heard on 

21 and May 22.
* 26, 1980, April 7, Apri

The Board reserved its disposition of the matter of
eint. Due to personal problems and commitments of

Members of the Board this decision has been delayed.

The Respondent B.C. Ice 6 Cold Storage Ltd. is engaged



of the c t M  is not furthered by going into groat dotali of
W *

•  * • v Union and tha Employer havo baon
ip> to collective agreements over a cons w *

of time.
The Collective Agreement with which we are concerned

contains reference to Group 1 and Group 2 classifications.
The work i 1 classifications is, generally speaking.
more arduous than the work in Group 2 classifications.
to 1973 the re

Prior
was to male and female classifications, 

the former generally corresponding to what is now Group 1 and
the latter to what is now Group 2. The change in reference
to the classifi ions occurred in the Collective Agreement

in or about 1973. The evidence is that over the

and have been assigned to Group 1 work and female
have always applied for and have been assigned to Group 2 work.
The evidence is that in recent years, at least, the dif



in Group l, ami although many havni done eo, nomo have not be<*n
celled upon to * r have in fact performed them all. i n
pattern no ma l i has, at the time of hiring, applied for and
been designated for the Group 2 classification, nor has any 
female, at the time of hiring, applied for and been designated 
for Group 1 classifications. K ' , n 1 9 lie*'»•••.>

The issues before this Board contained in the Report
to the Minister and, as we understand it, 
are as follows:

to by the parties

(1)

(2)

(3)

(-4)

Has Ms. Jorgensen been-denied and is she being denied
*

equal opportunity to perform Group 1 work?
Was Ms. Jorgensen discriminated against in not being paid
a Group 1 rate, or being classified 
when she performed Group 1 work?

C i  * I a Group 1 worker,

Does the Collective Agreement discriminate against women 
employees of B.C. Ice & Cold Storage Ltd. by not providing 
a one thousand hour rate in the Group 2 classification?

Did Clause 602 of the 1976 Collective Agreement have a
discriminatory

& Cold
in the

Ltd. ?
of women at B.C

ISSUE (1)

m. m m is will be dealt with in detail below

- 4-



hour

to six hundred 
by the transfe

\



If thi'jr had been « mal in Group 2 undejr
Rimil.’u circumstances, presumably he would have been in t.h

t : on. If either Susan Jorgonssn or the maio c
did not agree with the Employer's interpretation of the Collectl 
| that employee could file a grievance but it does not
seem to us to be discrimination against a female
is a question of a grievance rather than a violation of the 
Human Rights Code.

ISSUE (3)

It should be noted that in 1979 and subsequent
thereto, a one thousand hour rate did apply to Group 2. The

ivo Agreement that was in effect in ¡976 had one re
and one reference only, to female and that in Section 6.02

is re to in our analysis of Issue below. The
parties did i ¡emselves to the matter of potential sex
d M  9lscrimmation in their negotiations in or about 1973 and in

. There is no other reference in the
1976 Collective Agreement or any reference in subsequent 
collective agreements that identify discriminatory practices
in to sex, either in terms or rates of pay or of

ies to certain work. Thcire is no doubt
OlMf vitw that historica iy there was that clear distinction 

drawn between female and male employees but the parties addressed



themselves to the questi"U And removed thet distinction. It
wo l % i PI ' flfethAt in earlier collective Agreements there was
s male classification and a female classification, and the male 
classification covered jobs which are presently covered, more or

*in 1, and the female classification covorcd, moro or
less, jobs which are presently covered in Group 2. It therefore
appears to us that, on the face of it, there is no discrimination
in the Collective Agreement itself against women. We have
addressed ourselves to the fact that in the interpretation and
the admini tion of a collective agreement there may arise a
conscious or subconscious discrimination against women.
discrimination might arise iin the appli ion of the collective
agreement or practices arising out of its administration without 
the Employer or those in authority specifically or consciously

the collective agreement in a manner which would
be di Virtually every collective agreement has

way by
The

the capability of being interpreted in a di 
some party whether intentionally or unintentionally
question of interpretation of the language of a collective 
agreement would better be dealt with in the grievance and

arbitration procedure rather than as a complaint under the
Human Rights Code. The issue as set forth deals only with
the absence at the time of the laying of the complaint of a

hour rate in Group 2 classifications as discrimina- -m

tory against women. This difference in the hourly structura

7-



va* removed in 1979. 
to that mettor ond any 
Collective Agreement « 
itself does not discri

We, however, hive Addressed ourselves 
other apparent discrimination In the 

nd have found that the Collective Agreement

(Emphasis added)
Such is provision is not contained in the 1977 or s
collective agreements. If Clause 6.02 of the 1976
is discriminatory, it is discriminatory against males rather 
than females in that it permits females to refuse such work 
but does not, on its face, permit males to refuse such work. 
This complaint was withdrawn by the Branch.

This, then, in our view, leaves Issue (1) and the
ancillary matters relating to it as the only Issue to be 
determined by this Board.

Section 8 of the Human Rights Code reads, in part, 
as follows:

in
respect of sn intended occupation, employment.



advancement, or promotiont and, without limiting 
the generality of the foregoing,

(a) no cm r shall refuse to employ, or to
, or to advance orcontinue to emp

, or discriminate against
rnon employment or a

promote
that
condition

(b) I • unless reasonable cause exists for such 
or discrimination.

(b)
(2) For the purposes of subsection (1)

tho sex of an
reason

mi 'ill ill not constitute
e cause unless it relates to the

maintenance o I t

(Emphasis added)
It will be noted that the prohibition against discrimination 
includes, but is not limited to, discrimination by reason of

The reason given by S. W. Reeder, President, to this 
Board and to Ms. Embree of the Human Rights Branch as to why

to March, 1977, refused or declined to 
permit Susan Jorgensen to be engaged in Group 1 work was that
because of alleged wrist and back problems she would be more
):kely to be 
Group 2 work

to injury than if she were
This conclusion was arrived at by

m

and observation that Susan Jorgensen wore wrist bands and taped 
her wrists and on one occasion requested Mr. Geoff 

Plant Manager of the Employer, to tape them for her, and the
observation of Mr of Susan Jorgensen away from her

- 9-



work «tution her back e a ck
or back complaint. There wae no other incident of back complaint
or back acho nor was there anything other • * the taping o
wristB or wearing wrist bands which led management to conclude
that she had back or wrist impairment.
two occasions in 1978 when Susan JorgenB'in was

was made of
ng wa

fish in cold water and because of the discomfort to her wrists
she asked for other work, which her permitted her to

do. Mr. Reeder also stated that he did not think he found
her to have a disability but rather to exhibit back complaints 
and wrist complaints which indicated either weakness or impairment

Mr. Reeder testified that based upon Dr. William 
Buckler's medical report and difficulties which very well may 
not have shown up in Dr. Buckler's office, he would not now

offer Susan Jorgensen any opportunity to do Group 1 work. He
says, "What we saw, we still cannot ignore H

Dr. Buckler conducted an examination of Susan
on April 5, 1979, approximately two years after the complaint 
herein was filed, and she then had no physical 
appeared to be an average healthy young woman of average we 
and build and strength and there were no objective findings of

J •or injury
i l U

His opinion, based upon given
as to the strength and physical

capabilities of males, females and human beings generally,

be dealt with at a later



Iß is that ona of th* 9  W

which the Employer took into account in declining or »efu-iing

to a1 lot 1 k to or partnit Sus Jorgensen to perform
Group 1 work was the condition of hor wrists.

It is therefore necessary to arrive at a conclusion 
upon the avidenca as to the actual condition of Susan 
wrists and as to whether that condition would constitute a valid
factor in refusing or declining to allow her to Group 1

work.
It should be noted that in the questions to

Susan Jorgensen to 1 • various terms were

used with re to the condition of her wrists, such as

with re

", "experienced" and other terms of communication

to the condition of her wri
Susan Jorgensen admitted that her wrists were, on

occasions, ti and she seems, on occasion in her evidence.

to a a in the term "sore" but usua m 4L

questioning returned to the term "tired". She stated that

at no time did she receive any treatment with respect to her
wrists nor did she consult any doctor. She never filed an

accident report with res to her wrists. She never refused

work because of the condition of her wri and, in of

soreness, in any event. She never made any complaints
as to being unabla to perform her work because of the condition

-11-



of hor wrli-1M Sh« denies the suggestion thst on one occasion
when racking fish that the water was too cold for her wrists and 
that sh« wanted to go off the washing line and onto the afternoon
shift. She contended that she preferred more comfortable work
and that because of her seniority she was entitled to ask for 
this type of work.

Susan Jorgensen admitted that she did tape her wrists 
periodically and that she wore wrist bands, some of which 
supplied through First Aid and some of which were her own. 
admitted that on one occasion she asked Geoff Leyland to tape

She

her wri for her. She stated that the reason for her taping
her wrists and asking them to be taped for her was for protection
and that she had her wrists irrespective of the job she was
to perf4*  W * It would appear that Susan Jorgensen consistently
taped her wrists, and that Faye Newman also did so to some
cons extent, and some employees did so occasionally.

The witness I,. Jackson testified that Susan Jorcensen
mention the of wrists and that she wri

and that Jackson had taped them for her This was done for

wrists
it was not uncommon for employees to tape their

L. Muironey testified that Susan Jorgensen did tape

her wrist*. This was not uncommon but she did complain about
tired and sore wrists, as did others.

-12-



Th. v Knots Paye Newman ttttifiod that Susan Jorgensen
to her about sore wrists but no mors so than f r a  . a

some other en\ployoes. This would appear to bo in 1976, and 
after the summer of 1977 when she had cotsod to perform Group X 
work. She stated that not only did Susan Jorgensen wear wrist 
bands but she, herself, and other employees, wore wrist bands
for support of their wrists.

her wri
The witness

Gordon Jorgensen,

and knew that

that he knew his sister 
her wrists with elastic, 
this at home.

wore



Mrs. L. Mackay gava similar evidi’nce*
rotor Ss or luiss-Kress testi^i'd ■ « a I

» usan
never made any complaint to him about sore wrists.

W. P. Hunter said that Susan Jorgensen
on occasion but he cannot recall that it was a 
thinks she said that she was tired.

sore wrists
em and he

Karnal Manhas testified that Susan Jorgensen wore
in her arms but it neverwrist bands, he assumed for stren

appeared to affect her ability to do work at the plant.
E. Gagnevin said that she knew Susan Jorgensen wore 

wrist bands but it was just to protect her wrists and that 
Susan Jorgensen had told her so.

Dr. Buckler, in addition to the evidence a 
referred to, stated that the absence of physical findings in 
his examination was not inconsistent with any strain on the
back or sore wrists which had occurred in the , nor
this exclude the possibility of strain in the future. He
said that she did not have teno-synovitis but she had a risk 
of getting it.

Geoff Leyland referred to the occasion when he was 
asked by Susan Jorgensen to adjust the tightness on the 
around her wrist with an elastic band that belonged to her 
thought this was an unusual request to S representative of

However* on another occasion Faye Newman

He

~ 1 4“



the

-15-



n intra-uterine device installed and her body rejected It
sho had had really bad back aches and cramps from

She recalled the incidentit. This would be in 1^76 or 1977.
when Geoff Leyland saw her when she was feeling tired and he 
asked her what the trouble was and she said that her back hurt*

lasted about a week and she ended up in hospital 
that time she has had no trouble with her back and never

to her back other than on thatmade any complaints with
occasion. She has had no further physical problems and
considers herself to be healthy.

Mr. Mulroney stated that Susan 
complained to him about a sore back.

had never

Faye Newman gave similar testimony as did Mick Louis*
Jorgensen, G. M. McKenzie, M. Hull, L. Mackay and
-Kress.

Dr. Buckler confirmed that in his examination Susan 
Jorgensen had told him about the back ache that had been

with the intra-uterine device for preventing pregnancy. 
He stated that it is not infrequent for back pains to be associated
wi an intra-uterine device and that back pain was relieved by
the removal of the device.

In his report (Exhibit Dr.
he was told certain things about the work to be done in the

and of Susan Jorgensen's complaints with respect to her

16-



wr in spite of his own

in his report and in hii 
9iv* opinions concerning her ability to do certain and
the : ikolihood o;i h^r uring herself. He then

istica to certain anatomical and
si«ir

statistics.
of males and females and he quoted 

Additional and differing statistics, and difference
between males, and between persons of di racial origins.
were put to him.
on these subi
evidence of Dr

In view of the evidence heard by the Board 
, we discount the rather speculative opinion

as it relates to the condition
of Susan Jorgensen's back and wri 
injuring herself.

, and the likelihood of

In summary, with respect to Susan Jorgensen's wrists 
and back, the Board's view, upon the evidence, is that she had 
no significant problems nor had she experienced any unique 
physical conditions which would of themselves unduly affect 
her ability to perform Group 1 or Group 2 work, or which would
of themselves expose I • to ]ob related injury.

cause
for the moment what is not "reasonable

pursuant to Section 8 2) of the Code, it is our
ing of Mr. Roper's argument with respect to that

subject that if the Employer held an "honest belief" that if 

Susan Jorgensen continued to perforin Group 1 work after March,

17-



197?, aho mi be exposed to job related Injury because of
t condition of her wrists and back, the holding of such honest
belief would be reasonable cause even if the Board would not
have come to the same conclusion.

He referred to the following cases as authorities.
The Vancouver Sun vs Gay Alliance Towards Equality 
(1977) 5 W.W.R. 198 (a decision of1 the Court of 
Appeal of British Columbia).
It was submitted that the decision of the Court

belief referred to with ion.

The Board
I

policy, despite bias, 
cause."



Th* cas* went to th* Supreme Court of Canada where the appeal 
waa dismissed.

It poems to us that apply ng th>- -’'bov* statomentn
of the Court of that even if the Employer hold an honest
belief with respect to the above mentioned matters, such honest
belief would not constitute reasonable cause if the alleged 
facts upon which such honest belief were based did not, in fact
exist or were not as the Employer believed. in other words, if

Susan Jorgensen's I a  Iion w respect to wrists and back
would not, in fact, unduly affect her ability to perform 
work or which would, of themselves, likely expose her to job

would not constitute

1

related injury if performing such work, the fact that the Employe
held an honest belief in that re
reasonable cause within the meaning of the Code.

The second case relied on in that by Counsel
for the Employer is

British Columvia r.t Products Limited and Janice
Lynn Foster vs Director 2 W.W.R. 289.

Chief Justice McEachern stated:

It seems clear from the authorities that to determine
use exists, it is 

apply an objective test, and the Appellant would have 
reasonable cause to refuse to employ the 
if facts existed which would constitute reasonable

— facts were not known ateven
of the application for employment."

as is add‘id)

-19



Dealing with tha particular facta aa they related 
to the atedical condition in that case# the Chief Justice stated:

For there to be reasonable cause it would be neces 
for the Appellant to establish that the Respondent 
in answering the said question as she 
facts relevant to the question of employment. In my 
view the Appellant has not established a sufficient 
factual basis for such a conclusion. A misaligned 
vertebra does not necessarily indicate back weakness, 
and the word 'strain' usually connotes a soft tissue 
H „ u r y . I have no way of knowing if a h i p H l M M M d  
such as described in the Stated Case constitut 
back weakness or strain, but I would surmise, 
is the best I can do, that it would not."

The honest belief was with respect to a judgment based on known

which matter



hat already been dealt with under Issue 
discrimination against Susan Jorgensen e 
of sex or on any other grounds before la

(2), there was no 
ither on the grounds 
te March» 1977. She

wrist and back. He recalls that this was near the end of the
herring season which ended on March 22, 1977. He stated that

the incident relating to the wrists was t * a day or so of
that which we take to mean a day or so before the end of the
herring season on March 22, 1977. His observance with
to Susan Jorgensen's back was also before that date Mr. Leyland
says he took no immediate steps with to his observation

ating to Susan Jorgensen. He said it was near the end of
the herring season and he wanted time to relax. He stated
that it was customary at the end of the herring season for
him and Mr. Reeder to meet to discuss the manner in which the

I



Th« herring season having ended and no Group 1 work
having baon assigned to Susan Jorgenson* she was laid off. It 
appears clear that after the layoff* Group 1 work was available
and was performed by employees junior to Susan Jorgenson. : t

would appear that she ained to the Union and her complaint

was taken up by Jack Nichol and another Union
0*Shaughnessy, on separate occasions were

sentati ve,
that

th«2 employees concerned wore 
was not capable of doing".

H 1 work that Susan
Apparently the Employer's concern

with re to possible injury to Susan Jorgensen was conveyed
to O'Shaughnessy and it would appear that some details with

to the observations relating to Susan Jorgensen's wri
to O'Shaughnessy.and back were

Mr. Reeder confirmed in his evidence that a decision

-22-



this was don« *nd thus, the «pisod« in July» 1978, was not«d
when Susan Jorgensen on two occasions r«qu«st«d sh« b« taken
ofi t.he iob of A ng mk- This, of course, was long after
Susan Jorgensen's complaint was lodged. He states that she
continued to wear wrist bands after that but he never enquired 
as .to the reason for this.

It would appear that in the Fall of 1977 Lydia .‘IcKay, 
Shop Steward, complained in connection with women not being 
given the opportunity to perform Group 1 work and, as a result,
di ion took place with the women employees and
given the opportunity to perform Group 1 work it wished
and felt they were able to do so. It would appear that after
some discussion the only one who did perform Group 1 work was
Faye Newman. It is clear that because of the Employer's
attitude with re to Susan Jorgensen, she was not given
the opportunity to perform Group 1 work.

The evidence seems clear that at the time of hiring 
of employees, all male employees were assigned to Group 1 work
and all female employees were assigned to Group 2 work. It
was stated that this was of their own choice and that discussions 

took place at the time of hiring with respect to the nature of
ti.e work Thus it would appear that of all . ' a

th« only ones to complain were Susan Jorgensen and Faye Newman.
The latter did perform Group 1 work for some time and there was

-23-



considerable evidence ee to her ability to continue to perform 
•uch work and, ultimately, she was taken off that type of work.

Ono ot t 'io confideraiionn nor) with respect
to the decision relating to Susan Jorgensen was her productivity 
in performing Group 1 work in January and March, 1977.
Smith in her opinion has dealt with this matter in some detail.
particularly as to whether her i
assessment of women in general was made.

assessment or a group 
In the view of the

majority of the Board we consider this factor was minor. We 
are cognizant of the decisions which hold that even though 
that factor was a minor one, if it were an element in the 

ision and it was based upon a consideration of sex, it 
would offend the Code.

However, in the case be:ore us, the three reasons
under consideration are inextricably bound together We
consider the Employer's officials in fact (though mistakenly) 
believed that Susan Jorgensen had wrist and back problems
which inhibited her ability to perform Group 1 work. We
also accept the evidence outlined by Lynn Smith that, in fact 
Susan Jorgensen's productivity in Group 1 work was adequate. 
In effect the Employer representatives made three errorsf

the decisions with to the condition of her

wrists, her back and her productivity. However, even assuming 

the Employer misjudged her productivity and would require her



to incrtiM it, thnir was that bscauas of thslr

) visw relating to ir wriats and back they
not ask har to, or indaad permit her to, increaaa har 
productivity for faar of her injuring herself ** again a
mistaken-view.

In the opinion of the majority of the Board, 
considering all the evidence and assessing the veracity of

tW1 , the consideration of the sex of Susan Jorgensen
was not a factor in the decision to deny her the opportunity

of performing Group 1 work.
Returning to Issue (1), it would be noted that

Section 8 (1) that "every person has the right of
equality of opportunity based upon bona fide qualifications

in of his occupation or employment". Section 8
(a) contains a prohibition against discriminating against a
person in res
un s reasonable

of employment or a condition of employment
exists for such discrimination.

Subsection (2) that the sex of any person shall not
constitute reasonable cause unless it relates to the maintenance
of public decency. While the thrust of the evidence and argument
was to a extent directed to discrimination by reason of
sex, it will be seen that the prohibition in the Section is 
not so limited.

Upon the evidence, the view of the majority of the

is that Susan Jorgensen was not discriminated aga

I



because of
against

view.

an employer, based upon an individual assessment of the employee
makes a ision with to the employee's individual
ability to perform the work expected of the employee and that 
of a situation where employees are assessed as a group, whether
by sex or other criteria. In the case of Susan Jorgensen such
decision to discriminate against her was based upon the belief
that she had sical problems with re to her wrists and

back which rendered her susceptible to injury if she con
Group 1 work (and the related consideration of her

productivity). This belief with re to her physical

ion was based upon the observations of Mr. on

only with respect to wrists and one occasion

-26-



that she cont:>nu«id to wear wrist bands but



d|»e to hat -»ex. Th*n complaints covered by Issues (2), (3) 
and (4) arc not justified.

f t

A remedy in this case is a difficult one to determine. 
Over three and one-half years have elapsed since the complaint 
was filed. On the evidence before the Board it is not possible 
to determine the extent of the loss of job opportunities which 
Susan Jorgensen might have had to her advantage, and the
appropriate compensation with respect to any such loss #

an nsen

nor can we

view to U Group 1 employee We are not,

therefore, at this stage able to make any Order as to

- 28-



any monetary settlement with Susan Jorgensen. However, 
the Board will for a pariod of two (2) month* remain 
seised of this matter eo that one or all of the Parties 
may apply to the Board to presont further evidence with 
respect to such loss of opportunity and financial loss 
she may have suffered as a result.

C. Under all the circumstances which are outlined in these
Reasons, there should be no award with respect to costs.



T» lì S HUMAN RIGHTS CODE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

COMPLAINANT

AND
1

I BOARD OF INQUIRY WITH RESPECT TO
' » TO CONTINUE WITH THE

Q.C., Chairman, Lynn Smith and Claire 
deal with complaints under Sections 6»

Alcott, Members, to 
8 and 9 of the Human

B.C. Ice & Cold Storage Limited and United Fishermen and
Allied Workeis' *

The hearing proceeded on the morning and
*

1979, and on the morning of June 1, 1979
ment of proceedings in afternoon of June 1st, Mr. Jack

President of and appearing on behalf of the Respondent
Union, raised the question of the proper constitution of the

AA/L



Hoard of 1 ry arising out of an apprehension of bias on
the p a r t  of the rman. r tated that he had
remembered and confirmed that the Chairman of this Board, 
John A. Bourne, had bean a member of an Arbitration Board as 
the employer nominee in an arbitration between Unita^^|^^| 
a. Allied workers’ Union and Nelson Brothers Fisheries Ltd.

the date of the Award being January 7,
was that of the Chairman and the

men

held in lat€
M a jo r i ty

Nominee appointed by the Union. Mr. Bourne published a
The matter in the arbitration related toDissenting 

whether or not an e oyee, did or did not come
within the terms of the Collective Agreement and should be 
paid under its provisions over a considerable period of

The majority held that he did come within the provisions
of the Collective Agreement and made an award accordingly. 
Mr. Bourne dissented and published a Minority Award on the

s of construction of the applicable documents and on the 
question of onus of proof. An application was made to the 
Supreme Court of British Columbia to set aside or remit the j 
Majority Award, and the Court set aside the Award and refused 
on grounds other than those which appeared in Mr. Bourne's " 
Minority Award, to remit it to the Arbitration Board.

This Board of Inquiry heard argument on Mr. Nichel's 
ubmission on June 1st and adjourned the matter to June 4th
for further argument. A for further submissions was
made and the Board heard further argument on July 3, 1979

at the outset stated that he did not
intend in any way to cast reflection or aspersion on the
integrity of the individual Board Members but in
accordance with the old adage of law, "justice must not only 
be done but it must bo seen to be done", and took the position 
that because Mr. Bourne had been associated with the Board 
of Arbitration above referred to in which he had been nominated 
by the Employer Company, he should disqualify himself as 
Chairman of this Board of Inquiry. It was



N«~l*on mother* Fisheries Limited had no connection vi 
B.C, ice A Cold Storage Limited but it wet noted that United

wasFishermen & Allied Workers'
arbitration as well as in the matter before this Board of 
Inquiry.

Mr. submitted that Ms.
■ V Alcott, Members of this Board, should also disqualify
themselves, not because of any previous involvements or
associations of

parties, but because
f with one or more of

in association
with Mr. Bourne on this inquiry up to June 1, 1979, and 
there had likely been communication between themselves and
Mr. Bourne. for the for the Union and for
the Complainant and for the Director of the Human Rights 
Code, appeared to agree that if Mr. Bourne were disqualified
it would be for Ms. Smith and Mr. Alcott to
proceed together as a two-person Board.

The Supreme Court of Canada has dealt with the 
question of bias of members of boards and tribunals in the 
case Committee for Justice and Liberty et al v. National
Ener Board (1976) 68 D.L.R. 3d p. 716. At page 733
C.J.C., in the majority decision stated a follows:

I f s Court in fixing on the test of reasonabl 
apprehension of bias, as in Chirardosi v. Minister 
of Highways (B.C.) (1966) 56 D.L.R. (2d) 469,
(1966) S.C.R. 367, 55 W.W.R. 750, and again in 
Blanchette v. C.I.S. Ltd. (1973) 36 D.L.R. (3d) 
■^■(1973) S.C.R. 633, (1973) 5 W.W.R.
Pigeon, J., said at p. 579 D.L.R., p. 842-3 S.C.R., 
that 'a reasonable apprehension that the Judge 
might not act in an entirely impartial manner is 
ground for disqualification'), was merely restating 
what Rand, J., said in Szilard v. Szasz, (1955) 1 
■ ^ ■ ^ H a t  p. 373, (1955) S.C.R. 3 at pp. 6-7, 
in speaking of the 'probability or reasoned suspicion 
of biased appraisal and judgment, unintended

it be*. This test is grounded in a firm
>e no lack of public confidence 
of adjudicative agencies

D.L.R.

concern that there
in the t  *  •
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J. in a dittanti judgment stated at
f
*

II The proper test to be Applied in a Matter of 
is type was correctly expressed by the Court of 

Appeal. As already seen by the quotation above, 
the apprehension of bias must be a reasonable one# 
held by reasonable and right-minded persons, 
applying themselves to the question and obtaining 
thereon the required information. In the words of 
the Court of Appeal (at p. 667), that test is 
'what would an informed person, viewing the matter 
realistically and practically - and having thought 
the matter throuah - conclude. Would he think
that it is more likely than not that Mr. Crowe, 
whether consciously or unconsciously, would not 
decide
U 1 can
I

no real difference between the 
in the decided cases, be they, 

apprehension of bias', 'reasonable 
suspicion of bias’, or 'real likelihood of bias'. 
The grounds for this apprehension must, however, 
be substantial and I entirely agree with the 
Federal Court of Appeal which refused to accept

suggestion that the test be related to the 
•very sensitive or scrupulous conscience'.
If This is the proper approach which, of course
must be adjusted to the facts of the ■

*  »  *

Other cases relating to this matter are:

Aina v.
1970)14 D.L.R.

ill et al
" Vi

W inn i Free Press Ltd, v. Labour Board et a]
39 W.W.R. 609;

Re Marques and Dylex Ltd
O. R.

Canadian Association IIndustrial

I n case# it vae argued that
o f a Vice-Chairman a Labour
give rase to a re le apprehension of bias because he

AA/L
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had pi*vlouai y worked for the law Ira
for th* Union 1
rra

it att^r t H ia  Involvem ent
a yaar tha haan f

kad had no involvement with tha matter

tha law
rm

s m

question
war- the firm Hi. Justice Moiden, speaking for the
Diviaional Court of the of Justice, id at

1« On behalf of the employer it is not submitted 
any one of the foregoing matters, that is to 

^■■previous association with the law 
professional relationship with the union, identi­
fication as a union lawyer or refusal to remove 
himself when one party raised the issue of appre­
hended bias, gives rise to a reasonable apprehension 
of bias but that their cumulative effect does. 
Reference was made to several authorities. The^^^^l 
^■¡¡■recent is that of the Supreme Court of Canada 
in Committee for Justice and Liberty et al v. National 
Energy Board et al (1976), 68 D.L.R. (3d) 716, 9

Justice Laskin, for the 
majority of the Court, said at p. 733:
N

r\

t This Court in fixing on the test of reasonable 
apprehension of bias, as in Ghirardosi v. Minister

) (1966), 56 D.L.R. (2d) 469, 
S.C.R. 367, 55 W.W.R. 750, and again 

in chette v. C.I.S. Ltd. (1973), 36 4

of Hi

D.L.R.
842-3Pigeon, J., said at p. 579 D.L.R. p 

S.C.R., that "a reasonable apprehension that 
the Judge might not act in an entirely impartial 
manner is ground for disqualification"), was 
merely restating what Rand, J., said in 
Szilard v. Szasz, [1955} 1 D.L.R. 370 at p.

S.C.R. 3 at pp. 6-7, in speaking 
of the "probability or reasoned suspicion of . 
biased appraisal and judgment,

it be'" .
While the test, as broadly stated and

somewhat in the quotations, if in 
terms and while the categories of reasonable 

apprehension of bi a B H r 1m P H H H H H H H H I H c a n n o t  really be closed, some 
assistance as to the content of the principle can,
I think, be gleaned from the cases. In this 
PPP rd, no case has been brought to our attention 
in which a prior professional association with a 
party has been held to be a ground of reasonable 
apprehension of bias nor has any case in which a

tne
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lion

l. which h u  lad 
■ H i  different, of

had anything to 
bo foro M i ,  i I  
Libert

• result 
i t  the

The situs*

Iriti to
Ü I H — - tribune 1 
do With tho setup 1|

Committee
esse itself in

esse
J u i t iO "

s regar
with re sp e c t 

a s s o c ia t io n
a s s o c ia t io n
Chief

to the
in itself. ■ case

i t  I
Just loo

end
^ H  may loose 
Lankin in

it that
Vqyty et al Bald f
While 1 would not see any vice in Mr. 

Crowe sitting on an application coming from 
or through the Study Croup in relation to a 
matter in which he was not involved,
though it was decided upon

even
hortly 'afterjhis

dissociation from tho Study Group» that is
this

"■ In looking at the cumulative effect of the 
factors relied upon by counsel for the employer 
there are certain other factors which have to be 
weighed in the balance. They are as follows. The 
vice-chairman had nothing to do with any aspect of 
tho present proceedings, as part of his association 
with the law firm or otherwise, and neither did 
the law firm itself during the currency of his 
association with it. Over a year had elapsed 
since he had anything to do with the union, or 
more correctly, one of its predecessors. Almost a 
year had elapsed since his connection with the law 
firm terminated.
" Further, on a more general plane, the nature 
and functions of the Board itself have to be 
regarded. The fact that a Judge in similar circum­
stances would not, I would think, have heard the 
case is not determinative. (In saying this I am 
not expressing an opinion on minimum legal standards 
We can take judicial notice, if it is not apparent 
from the Labour Relations Act itself, that members
of the Labour Relations Board and in particular 
the chairmen of panels will have had experience 
and expertise in the law and labour relations.
The Government of Ontario looks to people with 
such a background in making appointments. Most, 
if not all of those appointed, are bound to have 
some prior association with parties coming before 
■■Board, in this connection the remarks of Mr.
Justice in R Picard et al

shoremen's Ass’n R

opposite:



’ T h »  only baaia for any apprehension o f  
Mao JubaitUd by appelant la  that Commi, 
ri card had b a t t i  conaultad mora than a V'-nr
Alum inium  L im ite d  whic

hum«
L td

y
l t | | 1 am

an Convni.filoner by 
la  a company which

c o n t ro l ,  ono o f  tha p a r t ia .  before  tha Commission
the icupondent Saguenay Shipp ing

M i t e  unable to  a n tic ip a te  a
H  H a c h  by Commissionar P ica rd  on the  

ground la i.e d  by a p p e lla n t. P ro fc sts io na l 
par non. a r t  c a lle d  upon to  se rve  in  ju d ic ia l ,
I  ^ p B I c i a l  and a d m in is tra tiv e  p o s t ,  in

f i t - id s  and i f  Covcrnmcnts were to  exclude
ground, they would f in d

them selves deprived o f  the se rv ic e s  o f  most 
p ro fe s s io n a ls  wi t h  any experience in  the

r s  in  respect o f which th e ir  se rv ic e s  
are so u g h t. '

q u a s i- 
many
candidates on auch

' Such people, having taken an oath of office 
[the Labour Relations Act, s. 91(18)] and, at 
least in the case of trained lawyers, being conscious 
of the necessity of ridding their minds of extraneous

s, it is not unreasonable to assume 
they, in exercising their jurisdiction, will act 
in good faith. Reference may be had to several 
useful examples of legislative policy respecting 
what is considered to be not permissible conduct

ons in theby persons e x e x c i a u p H I H ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ I  
field of labour relations, having regard to
associations. Section 5(11) of the Hospi____
Disputes Arbitration Act, R.S.O. 1970, c. 208, 
provides that no person shall be appointed a 
member of a board of arbitration

t 5
Labour

'5(11). 
the
or
the date
counsel

.who has any pecuniary interest in
it or who is acting! *  

within a period of six months preceding 
of his appointment, acted as solicitor,

or agent of either of the parties.'
U■  For provisions to the same e 
may also be made 
Barqainin
IPv4, c. 1
Collective Negotiations Bar

I Collective 
amended bv, 1972 (OntT), c.

I* 5, the School Boards and Teachers
1975

(Ont.),

if
13 my view 
th e re  wa

a l l  of the foregoing into account, it 
that in Die circumstances of this case

• jjvt a reasonable apprehension of bias as 
that term is understood and has been applied, 
m atte r of the prudence of the vice-chairman in
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A. ROPER, ESQ., appearing for B. C. Ice 
& Cold Storage Ltd.
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as a party in the
by the same

#
kritiutl Columbia. relevant to



(roten «tat», and procetting or atorlnç tht flth for lia
•I The proceeding may * ira '>lat« among other thing* «

of heading the fish, removing the innards* coating tha 
fish with a glazing substance, freezing it« bagging and 
boxing it. Throughout procaaaing and storage, fiah for 
each customer must be kept separata from fiah belonging to
other customers. The ny operates the Harbour Plant
year round but during the winter months (the off-season) 
the crew is reduced to a small number - at its smallest.
around 10 to 20 workers During peak periods, the crew
can swell to 110 to 120 workers.

The workers at the Harbour Plant are represented 
in collective bargaining by the other P.espondent, the
Uni Fishermen & Allied Workers Union (the "Union"), and
have been so represented for many years. The Union was
represented at the Hearing by its President, Jack 
Michol.

11.

Qtt il 13« 1977, the Complainant made 
mints under the Human Rights Cods as followsi

A • *  • under sections 6, ft, g 0f 
Cods of Britiah Columbia that I 
against by Manager, B, C.

a a I 1 n
was discriminated

I §. Col« StoragLtd», 2155 Commissionier Street, Vancouver,
• %



4



%

- 5 -

2

3

4.

Was Ma. Jorgsnssn discriminated against in not 
bring paid a Group 1 rat«», or baing classified a

1 worker* whan aha performed Group 1 work? 
Dot* the collective agreement discriminate
against women employees at the B. C. Ice k Cold
Storage Ltd. by not providing a 1,000 hour rata 
in 'the Group 2 classification?
Did clause 602 of the 1976 collective agreement 
have a discriminatory impact in the employment of
women at B. C. 6* Cold Storage Ltd.?

III. THE ISSUES

Issue 4 above was abandoned by the Complainant 
and the Director at the hearing as was the complaint under 
Section 6 of the Human Rights Code for equal pay for
substantially similar work. the Majority states
that the parties agreed that the issues were as set forth 

the rt to the Minister, in fact the Complainant and
the Director argued that the issues to be decided by the

ere nee only those set forth as Issues 1, 2 and 
aoove but also somewhat ' rodder issues as to whether there 
it discrimination against women employees at the harbour
Plant the principles by which the groups of 

ees are structured and the ssnntr in which tasks ar
assigned to group, resulting in restricted access by
wommn to the higher-paid or otherwise preferable



It would b*' UHl'ful frt this point to raaut« tha
iftsuon, for clarity, .<• (ollownt

A, SUSAN JORTKNSEN

1 .

2.aC *

Pid the Company discriminate against the 
Complainant in refusing to allow her to resume 
Group 1 work after an initial attempt by her to 
perform such work, and if so, was there 
reasonable! cause for the company's decision?
Did the Company discriminate against the 
Complainant in paying her a rate of pay less than 
the Group 1 1,000 hour rate while she was
per
197 7?

ming Group 1 work in January and March,

/as the collective agreement at the date of the
^ discriminatory against women on its
face?

s there, at the relevant time, discrimination
women through, or pursuant to, the 

collective agreement in any of the following ways 
(i) through the categorisation of workers into

*

those who perform jobs of a more onerous



n^tmr mid thoao who perform lighter work, 
the categories of workers being called

1" and "Group 2* respectively, and 
the Group 1 workers receiving a higher top 
rate of pay than the Group 2 workers?

(ii) through the manner in which the Company
ether or not with the acquiescence of the

Union) has allocated particular tasks 
performed in the Harbour Plant to Group 1 
and Group 2 respectively?

(ili) through the manner in which persons are
hired into the respective Groups, allowed to 
transfer from one group into the other,
to quali fy for s ialized jobs with higher

Known as the Classified/Preferential
jobs?

Was there discrimination against women employees
in 1977 by virtue of the fact that, al
there were three rates of pay for Group 1 workers
(undsr 400 hours, between 400 and 1,000 hours and
over 1,000 hours), there were only two rates of
pay for Group 2 workers (under 400 hours and over 
400 hours)?

JURISDICTIONAL ISSUE 
The Company argued that jurisdiction of this
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Report to the Minister of Labour becauae of the proviaion 
• 16 of the Human

s. 16(1)« Where the Dir
allegation ... the Dir
Minieter of Labour, who 
Hoard oi Inquiry and ...

►

tor la unable to sott 'e an 
shall make a report to the 
refer the allegation to a

(b) fix a place at which and a date on which the
Board of Inquiry shall hear and decide upon the 
allegations•

Counsel lor the Company also pointed to the 
Human Rights Code s. 17 (the Board may make

provisions of 
a number of

orders where it is of the opinion Mthat 
justified”) and s. 15 (which refers to f t

may be referred to a Board of Inquiry if

an allegation is 
a complaint" which 
unable to be

The Company maintained, in short, that the Board 
has jurisdiction only to hear evidence and render a

m  _ &is ion with r
parti

to "the allegation", meaning the 
r allegation which was investigated by the Human

Rights Branch pursuant to section 15, described in the
to the Minister of Labour under I tion 16 and

Jurisdiction.
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Count*« 1 ini

t h i - i i iHiat <l*

drei*Ion of a
ry of

t ho Company rrfarrad to two i n
first casa concarnad * » int

L 1 K1 i * \n Melaran against Frank p)\0 ,
s nitish Columbia Fight M tloai cof

1 97 m In that
i I Mt

refused to quash tho proceedings
instead treated the respondent 

for further and better particulars
>3 s one

The Board stated that

s ofbe prepared to entertain 
I *  further and better particular«
who^»8 Part °f the resP°ndents or other parties who are interested and to deal with those

ications according the merits in eachi n

his side of

e rules of natural
rSquire that a respondent be made aware of 
nature of the complaint against him with

" . ‘ to enable him to fully present
the dispute ... in determining the

or not a respondent
IP of a complaint a__  „ H
to enable him to present an adequate 
nsideration must be given not only to

Of the nr«°mPialnt £ile<J but als° to the
mav iendPfS W ln9w and other circumstances«nay tend to show the true state of

® ni i nd l nsof a r s c # w m _̂__ % _ ■ * .nt is

ns t
m o f

i

hearing date."



Second , counsel for the Cœpany relied upon
case in the WbtM î -t Supreme Court# Trini vision# Re
Attorney General for Alberts and Pares tti si*# (1976) 67 
D*L.R* (M) 635, which involved a complaint by seven
female certified nursing aides under the Individual
Rights Protection Act of Alberta that a hospital violated 
Section 5(1)(a) oi that Act by employing them at a lower 
rate of pay than that which male nursing orderlies wer
receiving for similar or substantia similar work. The

aint succeeded and counsel for the complainants 
sought an Order that there be a retroactive award not only 

fcke seven complainants, but also for all other 
certified nursing aides in the same position as the

Ike court refused to make such an order,
s ing :

The Board of Inquiry did not have jurisdiction to 
award compensation by way of back pay to the 
certified nursing aides other than the seven

plainants. The Board of Inquiry# pursuant to 
ion 18(1;, could investigate only 'the matter 
ained of* and, pursuant to section 22(1), 

could make recommendations only as to 'the c o u r s e  
action it thinks ought to be taken with 
spect to the complaint*. The word ’complaint*

fco the complaint which has been made 
in writing by *a person who believes he has 
discriminated against1 (section 17(l)(a)) ..
complainant can complain only in respect of 
discrimination against him (or her).

r

■ m  v  v any say. t# toy the s<tmo token, in the?



%
“ li

present cm*« the lionrd only h*n jurlndlction with rennet 
to "the allegation" or "the complaint”» which mean* that
the Board may cona r, at most, only o*e 1 'iB ue*

contained in the Report to the Minintnr.

The principles of natural justice» including the
to notice of the case wh st be met, and the

right to a fair hearing» were cited in further support of 
the Company's position. It must be noted, however, that 
the Company does npt rest its argument upon lack of notice 
of the case to be met. It did not request an adjournment 
or further particulars, and admits that it has not been 
taken by surprise. Rather, the argument rests upon what 
the Company says is the proper interpretation to be given
to the express statutory requirements of the Code.

The Director and the Complainant argued first of 
all, that if the issues are alluded to, or would be 
reasonably understood to arise, from either the Complaint 
forms, the Report to the Minister or the Human Rights Code 
sections cited in those documents, those issues form part 
of the "allegation” over which the Board has jursidiction. 
Secon-, they argued that the Human Rights Code must be 
given a fair, lar-j■* and liberal interpretation, in order 

t© It tt© 1A tended b, tire Leg is 1ature.
Counsel for those parties arguod as well that it would be
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An unusual situation in which Issuss could bs identified 
with precision «< t ho investigative -itAg** thun nnabl ing 
ths three prs-condi t ions argued by the Respondent to be
Piot , t this could not have been the Legislature's
intention. it was at that the Pho cast* done not
upport the interpretation urged by the Company, but 

rather shows that i f an allegation or complaint, in 
imprecise, the result is not a lack of jurisdiction in the 
Board to consider the complaint, but a right to further 
particulars and an adjournment if necessary* Finally, it 
was argued that when the Complaint forms and the Report to
the Minist are read as a whole along with the Code
; * i' 'hey refer, the issues argued by the
Complainant and Director are set forth in general terms
On page 1 of the Report to the Minister, the statement •  ___1 s
a n

Ms. Jorgensen filed a complaint alleging that B.
C. Ice & Cold Storage Ltd. has discriminated 
•gainsfe her and against all women in employment 
on the basis of sex. She alleges that - 1.
female employees are not given equal opportunity
to enter the Group l classification; 2s Ms.

en was not paid a wage equal to male
es £°r similar work or substantially 

similar work.

Paragraph 10 on page 3 of t rt to the
Minister 1 « as foil owe 1



Women At n. C. Ice have performed work which la 
clearly recognized as Group 1. Man at B. C. lea 
porform work which ia moat frequently dono by 
women. The distinction of light and heavy work, 
which ia to be allocated to Group 1 and Group 2 
respectively, ia not clear, notwithatand1nq the 
division of work provided by the company as shown 
in Exhibit "D"

-  1 3  -

Upon consideration of all of the above, the course of 
the hearing and the relevant evidence, 1 conclude that the 
Board has jurisdiction with respect to the issues raised 
by the Director and the Complainant during the hearing of
this matter. In the Gares case, it was a matter of

—

seeking to add new complainants with new complaints (even 
though the complaints would be identical to the existing 
ones). In this case, it is a matter of seeking to spell 
out or particularize the discrimination alleged. If lack 
of notice had been argued, the Respondent company might 
have been entitled to particulars or an adjournment, but 
jurisdiction is not lacking.

V. THE FACTS

A. The Collective Agreement
For several years, the Respondent Company has not 

been part of the Fisheries Association of British Columbia 
and has therefore not taken part in industry w i d e
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bargaining. However, tho Collective Agreement between the 
Company and the Union follows the same format aa the 
Industry agreement with a Wage Supplement Including come 
individualised featurea and somewhat higher wages. Until 
1973, as was the case throughout t
Collective Agreement at the Harbour Plant provided for
different wage scales for general labour by men and women

headings "Fresh Fieh Shed - Mala" and "Presh
Pish Shed - Female". The wage scales were printed on blue 
and pink paper respectively. The wage scales on the blu#
paper were higher than those on the pink paper. inning
with the 1974 Collective Agreement, these terms and this 
style of printing were eliminated. From that time there 
have been three headings under clause 1.02 of the Wage

for B. C. Ice & Cold Storage Ltd.: "Cold
Storage", "Group 1 Fresh ! ìsh Shed Workers" and ft 2

• Fresh Fish Line Workers".

••aninga of thi latter two of these terms are 
spelled out in some more detail in clause 1.06 of the'Wage 
Supplement, as follows:

1 Fresh iphed Workers grouping
consists of more onerous jobs in Presh
•* H®l°ading, grading, operating tow motors, 
heading, etc# and employees so categorized mast 
he phy.lc.lly c.p.blc of «cS work L .
related heavy lifting.



*

. Fish Lin« Workern grouping
consists of work of a lightar nature such as 
wrapping, panning, weighing and other related
work.

It waa Hr. Nichol's evidence, being the President of the 
ion and aware of the negotiations over the years, that

Clauses 1.02 and 1.06 were not bargained "deeply" and
that, in some ways, the wording resulted from the need to 
describe the work done in a number of different plants in
the industry. c wording of these clauses is identical,
the Board was told, to that used in collective agreements
resulting from industry-wide bargaining) For example,
Mr. Nichol testified that the reason that "washing" is not 
mentioned under either Group 1 or Group 2 is that in some
plants it is done by men and in other plants by women.

Exhibit 4 in these proceedings (attached to the 
report to the Minister as Exhibit "D") may not form part 
of the Collective Agreement, but is properly discussed at 
this point. It was prepared by the Company as a 
particularization of the tasks which fell under the Group
1 and Group 2 headings Mr. the plant manager.

that he prepared it soon after he started work with 
the Company in 1976. The evidence conflicts as to whether 
the emplo/ees or the union became aware of the existence



I

had been
t content«. m

in October or November,

of the collective agreement
Union involvement in Exhibit 4 c some importance if

1 «
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*  I be stated about Exhibit 4 at
tills

seems clear that, with few if any

1 " are
performed by male workers

by female workerr> under the
1

mo ,i e



difficult tasks In Group 2« Various ompioysss 
tstsd, in fact# that certain tasks in Group 2

are mors difficult than rtain tasks in Group
1. Mr. Reeder stated that, in his view, all of 
the Group 1 work is heavier, when performed on a
production basis, than the Group 2 work, 
the categorization may not be perfect.

The allocation of tasks to the Groups is one side 
of the coin. The other side of the coin is the allocation 
of people to the Groups. There are no relevant provisions 
in the Collective Agreement with respect to hiring.

*Hiring practices prior to 1973, because of the wording of 
the collective agreement, must have meant simply putting 
the prospective employee in the appropriate category 
according to sex. After that year and until 1979, it 
appears that there was no stated Company policy of 
sutOMtically hiring men into Group 1 and women into Group 
2, nor, on the other hand, of ensuring that prospective 
M i e  employees and prospective female employees both knew,

they were hired, that they could go into either of
» * Rather, it was stated by witnesses called on

behalf of the ny, a process of “natural selection
took pisce whereby men would come and ask for “in the
war M or the lik«> end would bo put into Group 1, and
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women would com# end ask Cor jobs "washing fish", etc. and 
would be put into Group 2« Since 1979» there has been a

age handed to prospective employees by th 
which explains the Group 1 and Group 2 categories.

ny

I ■ * 4 udes a copy of Exhibit 4, and states that the
leant may n either Group so long as he or she i

capable of performing all tasks in th 
of the Company.

in the view

The Company's position is that it has always been 
requirement of membership in Group 1 that the 
be physically able to perform all Group 1 tasks 

civ. all Group 2 tasks, and a requirement of membership in 
Group 2 that the employee be able to perform all Group 2 
tasks. This position is supported to some extent by
evi of employees called by the Director and the
Complainant, some 1 s stated that
they have not in fact performed all tasks in Group 1 and

*ore senior Group 1 employees testified that.
most of the time. perform only certain tasks at which
they have become particularly adept.

i t. * Aooordiim 9o the dates sot out on the seniority 
list pcsparad by the Company, down to number 29 on the 
seniority li«t, the employees were hired prior to 1973 and



th> • from "Fresh Fish hirt i 1 " and
H ••h Fish Shsd - Female" to "Group 2“
mploy«M»a were hired at a tim<* whnn the*

That is. the

to which
they went were expressly determined by their sex

The Director and the Complainant argued that the
Collective Agreement is discriminatory in that the
division of tasks into Group 1 and Group 2 si y
perpetuates the old system and sets up an artificial 
barrier to change by including in Group 1 tasks which 
would be eventually difficult for most women to perform 
and which would discourage women from trying to join that
Group

B. Susan Jorgensen (the Complainant)
At the time of the hearing, the Complainant was 

36th on the company seniority list. She was first
employed by the company in 1973 on a temporary basis and
in September, 1975 on a permanent basis. She does not
recall any discussion when she was hired rding Group 1
and Group 2, or any choice being presented regarding the

she would do. Rather, she was just hired and
put to work. Her was s ect to seasonal
lay-offs

th
In early 1977, while working at the V ant, she 

at operations weft* gearing down and that
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layoffs wsr*t immiilent for the female Group 2 workers. She

•tripping rack« of frozen herring, which would be 
performed by male Group 1 employees unior to hei in 
seniority* She felt she was capable of doing that work# 
and wished to continue working rather than be laid off* 
(She testified that she had eadc a complaint to her 
foreman about a similar situation in December of 1976# but 
had not been called in to work although her brother,
Gordon Jorgensen, who was junior to her# had been given 
work chipping ice. The foreman, whose name was MA1M told 
her that slu could not work in the freezer.) She and some 
other women in the plant, through Mrs. Lydia McKay, a Shop 
Steward, made representations to the Company that they be 
permitted to stay on and perfora the Group 1 work in 
preference to the junior men. The Company agreed to 
this. The result was that during January and March of 
1977, Susan Jorgensen along with several other Group 2 
women, performed a Group 1 task known as "Stripping

herring • This task was genecal!/ agreed to be around the 
»iddlK! of the scale of difficulty for Group l jobs. The 
work ended towards the end of March of 1977. Th«
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While performing the Group 1 work, the women were 
peid their ueuel Group 2 rates* which were in ell cases
th<* vflu.tl I ; ir»d 400 hour rates The ny ' a reason I'.o z

ng those rates rather than Group 1 rates was that it
would not have been fair to pay the top 1 rate (the
1. hour rate) to employees who had not put in 1.000
hours in Group 1. However, the women were given a credit 
of 600 hours towards the attainment of the Group 1 1,000
hour rate The principle of rate retent o. requi red
payment at the Group 2 400 hour rate rather than the Group
1 400 hour rate because the former rate was, at the time,

0

r than the latter because of a historical anomaly.
The evidence of the Complainant was that she had not been

that that was the reason for her being paid the Group
2 400 hour rate.

Just after the end of the herring season in
March, 1977, the plant manager, Mr. J. , and the
Company President, Mr. Stuart Reeder, held a meeting to

ard review plan- operations during the season. 
••• decided at that meeting to refuse to allow the

to conti nj<- to perform Group 1 work, 

t <j the two part ; ipants in the meeting, the

It

reasons were threefold: 1. The ainant's wrist



Hot hack •mo; . The need for' her to
l*k# an effort to improve her productivity in order to
■eet the standards required of 1 workers« which
ef. t could have s deleterious effect on her wrists or
back.

(1) The denial of work in 1976, and

receive the Group 1
1000 hour

1 work in January and March of 1977

summer season« 

O 1Shaughnessy,
on

the Business
9 i na n t was not

called in to work,



chill long* t ht Company on its rtiponit to those inqulfi®*
which rsponn« was that th<*r* was no work than availabla

which tha Complai I • Vt waa capable of doing.

Tha Complainant worked that yaar during tha 
ummer staion at tha Plant, generally performing tha job

of racking salmon (a Group 2 task according to Exhibit 4),
and it was only when she was laid ol f! at the end of the 
salmon season and felt that she should have been kept on 
to perform the work which remained in preference to the 
junior male employees who were kept on, that she became 
aware of the Company's decison. She filed a grievance at
tl at point, and meetings were held in connection with that
grievance in and November of 1977. The

ainant stated that she was not told until the
occasion of one of those meetings what the 
reasons for ts decision were. However, it appears from 

evidence of Mr* Leyland that the Company's decision
and the reasons for it had n communicated to Mrs.
0*Shaughnessy, by a much earlier date in the spring of 

1977, but that the information, for whatever reason, was
not passed along to the

s not called, and Mr.
ainant. Mrs* O'Shaughnessy

s ev on the point
was ic.-» #



During this same period in the fall of 1977, 
Valerie Embree, the Human Rights Officer who had been 
appointed, was carrying out her investigation of the 
complaint. (The complaint had not been brought to the 
Company's attention until August, 1977 because, according 
to Ns. Embree, there was not sufficient staff to deal with 
it.) Subsequent to her investigation, there were attempts 
to bring about a settlement of the matter, but those 
attempts were unsuccessful.

VI. I ’

A. # nant

One of thei issues the Board, as set forth
above, is whether the Complainant was discriminated 
against by rsason of sex without reasonable cause
virtue of the- IS refusal to allow her to resume



discrimination againnt tha within tha
ion the’word "discrimination »

«V .

- I amo Court in Nalaon > Ateo Lumbar 
1 B.C.L.R. 207 (B.C.S.C.)? Tho Court

said in that case» at p.214:

The verb * to 
*■ was used in the 

, 1971, Chapter 72 
1974 1 W.L.K.
Post Office v. Union

I
*  a

In the House of Lords,

i • i

m .

V.
m

in Post
1 All E.R. (BUD-nom

M  Post Office Workers) 
Lord Reed said at page \ I

a comparison. Here I 
think that the meaning could be eitherHIH 
by reason of the discrimination the worker 
is worse off in some way than he would have 
been if there had been no discrimination 
against him, or that by reason of 
discrimination he is worse off than someone 
else in a comparable position against whom 
there had been no discrimination. It
not make much difference which meaning is
taken but I the as

meaning of the word, and 
appropriate in the present case.

more 
is the most

If thft Complainant suffered from
problems which would have created a
increased rink of
work at an appropriate
the end of the

of

someone else in a comparable

ury for her in

'  *  V  \ sc* 3 o r

i
* x

i

is no worse off than

*i s

no a aver, if th<‘re weic in
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(Act no sue V fe,

mint be «ikod
•icil problem», then the further question 
what prompted the decision on the purt of

the Company? e »mio 1» not to <4® the <.Offl
Motivation, for I accapt that discriminatory thoughts or 
■otivaa are not prohibited by the Coda unlaas thay raauit 
in diacriminatory conduct, but rather to determine whether 
the Complainant's gender was a factor in the Company's 
decision, resulting in her being treated differently than 
she would have been if she were a man. The Board heard 
argueent from counsel as to the law in this respect, and I 
agree with the following statement in the Br 
(H.R.B.I., June 10, 1980, p. 14):

It is thus the view of this Board that a
prohibited consideration need not be the "sole” 
or even the "effective" reason for the denial or 
other discriminatory conduct in order for a
contravention to have occurred. It is sufficient 
if the prohibited consideration was a significant 
reason even though it may be only one of perhaps 
several factors and even though it may not be the 
most important factor of the several which 
^H^^M^Mtriggered the impugned conduct ... It is 
the opinion of this Board that, having once 
determined a prohibited consideration was one of
the reasons for the refusal, there should have 
followed a finding that a contravention had 
occurred. The Jefferson Board supported its 
result by reliance upon an "objective managerial
discretion". As we nave said, the respondent's 
fair-sindedness is not relevant if one of the 
reasons for a denial is s prohibited 
consideration. To conclude otherwise would be to 

_ __ iinevitable erosBds.
invite ft oi the force of the



To aummariae, than» tha Bum i muat determine (1)
wh*ithnr the Complainant's physical condition warranted
refusing h tha opportunity to perform further Group l
work, and, if it did not, than (2 ) whether tha Company‘a 
decision to refuae her that opportunity turned, in aome
way, upon tha fact that ahe la a woman. If tha answor to
(1) la No and (2) ia Yea, than the Complainant was 
diacriminatod against by reason of aex. Because tha Code 
specif lea that tha sex of a person discriminated against 
shall not constitute reasonable cause for that
discrimination unless it relat to the maintenance of

ic decency (and there is no contention that it did so 
here) then the Complaint against the Company would be made 
out in this respect.

To address the first was the decision to
remove the Complainant from the work justified, 
objectively, by the facts?

combined with her

of the derision,
also on evidence of matters which ware not known to it at
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that t ime including some which occurri'l subsequent to the 
decision. X agree with submissions from counsel for the
Company th.it the issue is not whether there were facto
known by tho Company at the tiae of the decision which 
justified it« but whether the Complainant did have

icnl problems, known to the Company or not« which
dictated that she not be put to i I on 1  taakn
Therefore, all of the evidence of tho Complainant * s 
physical symptoms has been considered.

The Majority has found as a fact that the 
Complainant had no significant problems or unique physical 
conditions relating to her ability to perform Group 1
work, and has set forth in detail the evidence of
wi in that respect I agree with that finding of

The third reason alleged by the Company for
withdrawing the Complainant from Group 1 work was that her 
physical symptoms combined with the need for her to 
increase her productivity in order to meet the Group 1
standard» t about an unacceptable exposure to
injury. Both Mr. Reeder and Mr. p • * said t it was
on** of t h « * thr ti c¿tuned them to remove the
Complainant from tbs work. Thsrefore« I will examina the

productivity in detail.
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Mr. J . land said that "the productivity
lower than what it should be" when nfikod about "the 
productivity of Group 2 workers in general, and Mb . 
Jorgensen in particular", and that it vai "at, you a
aay. a io level on the low s To come

a little bit.

to
a really positive productivity, it would have to be pushed

However, he said, it was not so low that
disciplinary action had to be taken. When asked on what 
basis he reached these conclusions, this witness stated, 
"On the tours of the plant that I made frequently 
throughout the day, I was able to observe them doing work

t r, Mr. Leyland was cross-examined by Mr.
Hichol, and stated that he had made the comparison on 
productivity with the male employees in the March period, 
during the last three or four days, "what the majority
were cross-examined by Mr. Camp, he stated.
with reference to the Group 2 employees, all were
not up to speed", but that the Complainant was as 
productive as the other women who were stripping the 
herring racks. When asked about sp e c i f ic  problems 
experienced by some of the other women in doing the work 
(one woman being too short to reach the top of the racks,
one finding that «9 c rather quickly while doing
the job), the witness stated that hi had neither observed



not b#Comu awart of thoot matter» * Th#* wl tnAM fiCA) ltd
st*ain<j At wot k Mirqiti t*t Ha 11 , June Clayton end Suunn
Jo i g)o n f̂ nn on the l n u t day«
that in fact Suuan had tiot

WhcMi it wan luqqaatnr! to him
ked alongside* t hr wonirii, tiut*

in fact had been working alongside two in<Mif ho agrtutl
That is possi bin M I*I wasn't there the whole day. It

wos t; ut t he i suggested that fellow employees had given
evidence that the ainant's productivity had been as
good as the men a, and the witness stated that he could 
not form any conclusion as to whether or not those 
witnesses were being honest with the panel. The witness

that Karnal Manhas, a Charge Hand, would have some 
skills in assessing productivity, and stated that he would 
put some stock in the views of Mr. Manhas, in most cases.
n\e question "And in any event, your bottom line is that
she had just started in this role and with supervision and 
with further learning time, her productivity might have 
come up to scratch?'* was put to Mr. Leyland, and he
replied, "It could have, yes «I

In redirect examination, Mr. Leyland was asked 
what standard he was applying when he was making the 
productivity assessments in March, 1977, whether he was 
commenting on the ability ol the women to comm up the seme 
standard ss the existing Group 1 employees, or comparing



the* to bow other Group 1 employees would do with about 
their experience« and replied« "Well« it was to bring them
) to the standard of the rest oi the Group 1 employees«**

In responno to a question from n member of tho 
panel« the witness said that he had used som<* meanurnm-titi 
to ascertain the productivity of the Group 2 workers« 
although he kept no notes of them« and that« on the 
average« the Group 2 workers had come out about one-third 
less than the Group 1 workers in termo of movement of
cases from the racks to the pallet, or into the totes. 
These measurements had been made by comparing the 
productivity of the group in which the women were working 
(which was not an a11-female group) against the 
productivity of another, all-male group.

The other witness called by the ny in *1 s
regard was Mr. Jay Wolkosky, who became Foreman just prior 
to March, 1977. He stated that he observed Group 2 
workers performing Group 1 work in March of 1977, 
stripping herring racks, and that “the Group 2 employees 
wore much slower in their work of forts, much slower at 
delivering the fish from the rack to the pallet." He
report'd these observations to Mr. Leyland. Later, under
cross-exa|nina%i o n  by Mr .  N icho! stated that he td
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thi productivity of the Group 2 worker* the 1 r
moVerne « rt, i i me t nk»«S to carry a box of
herring from tho rack and put it on the pallets*
in and 9 et nnot , general movements How«'ve r,
admitted that he had made no mcasuromenta to ascertain how
many s per shift were being biuvqiI by the Group 2
workers and whether they measured up in that regard to the 
normal expectation that two Group 1 workers would be able 
to move 60*000 pounds in a night. He stated that» to the 
best of his knowledge» Mr. Leyland had not made an 
estimation that the Group 2 workers were one-third slower.
nor anyone el

Under cross-examinati by Mr. , M r. V

stated that he saw the Complainant stripping herring racks 
on day shift in March, 1977, and that that was the only
time saw her doing the work. Later, Mr. put the
following question to the witness, "I am suggesting to
you, Mr. that your recollection is nothing more
than this; that on a few occasions, as you walked by the 
Group 2 workers, during the latter part of March, you
cone that their productivity was not as good as the

1 workers, is that a fair statement?", and the
witness replied, "That's a fair statement. lie further

that he had no distinct recollection of the
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X ! WV > t productivity compared to t■l other f rniii 1 «* n

who were doing the work, and that ho hud not particularly 
diicrrn»n1 the Complainant's productivity.

In light of the fact that Mr. a view» as
to the productivity of the Group 2 workers wore reported
to Mi. Ley]and # and thuu, pr II ibly# wero taken into
account by Mr. Ley land and Mr. Render in their assessment 
of the Complainant's productivity# it is also ralovant to 
note his answers to further questioning about his views in 
general pertaining to women. Mr. Wolkosky stated that he 
holds the view that men are generally stronger than women# 
that if women do hard physical labour at B. C. Ice 
have an increased risk of hurting themselves# and that he 
would hate to see Susan Jorgensen or Margaret Hall doing
this heavy work# for fear that they would hurt
themselves. All of these state ts were mm in rcsj>onse
to suggestions put to him in cross-examination by Mr. Camp

In re-direct examination. Mr.
although he had not particularly discerned the

said that#

of the Complainant# she had not risen above 
the average or less than average level of the Group 2
workers# and was performing tha same below—average work 
theiothers.

as
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in response to questioning from on© of th
member a of thi panel, tht witness stated that his
öl»? orvêt i ss ths productivity of the Group 2 workers
were made on tho basis of observing them for a few mi nuten
a a t ime <i antage nt a lit tli* ways back.

To complete the picture, evidence of the )any
as l Mr . r and tho Human

Rights Officer, Ms. Embrce, indicates that tho Complainant
on night shift during March of 1977, with the

exception of two days, March 21 and 22.

Witnesses called by the Director and the 
Complainant, all fellow employees of the Complainant,
generally stated that observed her as having no
problems with productivity

The charge hand, Karnal Manhas, who was
* 1 shift during a period of time

when the Complainant was performing group 1 work on that
that while the Complainant was stripping 

herring racks, Mshe did the same as anybody oils 
night shift#“ He stated that he was working cl 

* ht lie had a pretty good 
» crew, they all



t job And t hey were till dot net i t . " fur t Me* r t d
that ht had no rtaton to btliivr that ton lor management
wan r n satisfied with the
worked. In cross-examination. Mr.

t had been

y the Complainant
s was asked

M  \  & of a cr .it w.lfc
otherwise composed of males during the herring season 
early 1977, and stated that sh*» h«id been* and was then 
asked how her productivity compared with that of other
members of that crow. His answer was h The name or
more", that he had observed her at the work whenever the
work was going on, but that she had performed that work
/ery seldom because she would usually be the tally person
and therefore would not be actually stripping the herring 

s. Mr. Manhas also stated that the taping of her 
wrists appeared not to have affected her work, in terms of

ivity as a line worker.

ing, other employees, including 
those who worked beside the Complainant, did not make any

e observations of her productivity. Their comments 
were similar to those of Nick Lewis, who said MI wasn't 
really watching, but as far as I know she kept up to most
of us, yes •i Larry Mulroney tout if led that hr had
observed the Complainant stripping herring racks in 1977 
at tha same time as ho wee performing tho task himself.
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and statad waft adequate, the same aft ill the rest of
ti e «»

:* m

He further stated that tho Complainant vai "about
? .\s thf Is employees* when ha saw her do tha

wot k.

Vince Cesano, who worked with tha Complainant
three or four days stripping tho herring racks, 
whether he had a chance to sec how oho worked out. and
replied *1 don't know what you n by that. I mean, you
work side by side., I don't watch what she is doing , you
know, you just do it, so - le stated that nothing had
come to his attention which led him to believe that she
was no good at the job "because 1 kind of move around too

around there."

t I rren Hunter, who had worked with the

was asked how she had
replied "average, the same as everybody

Complainant in a crew which was stripping boxes oi herri

Ley la
One notable feature of tho evidence of Mr. 

a’d Mr. Wolkows i w th respect to productivity i
its lack of ific reference to tho Complainant. Both
of these witnesses refer almost exclusively to th« Group 2 

workers as a whole, rather than to the Complainant as an 
individual. Further, it appears that tha opportunity for



. Iit*yl«n-1 and Mr . Wolkowakl to ob»r» ** r ?i*- mpl« inant
was somewhat limited, because nhn w/ts working on the ni
hi ft for much of ths relevant period.

On ths other hand« the observations of the
inant's fellow employees« who worked beside her or

around her, are that she, as an individual, was as
productive as the average, that she "kept up f t or that
"the line didn't stop" (Lionel Jackson)« Some of these 
witnesses distinguish between the Complainant |.nd the 
older women, stating that although the work was too 
difficult for the older women, it was not for the 
Complainant.

In my view, there was no evidence upon which it
would be reasonable to conclude that the Complainant's

ivity needed improvement, whether or not it mi 
have been the case that the Group 2 workers in general

slower than the Group 1 workers. It does not even
r that the Complainant worked for most of the time 

with the other women who were performing the Grou; 1 work;
rather, e was working in crews which were otherwise all
sale nost of the time. There lore the evidence from Mr. 

I^yldnd and Mr• WolkowsKi as to hor productivity can have
little we $ and we are left with the evidence of the
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(ifllow •rtployMi tti« Complaint horaelf, who »tnt«dl
that they •ho Ikept up

^  kKarafot« follows that none of the 
stated reaBOHB for refusing the Complainant the further 
opportunity to perform Group l work, cither alone or in

i* t ion, haa proved to have an objective baaia.

The next question ia whether the Complainant's
p<‘x w.iB facto* > n the QttMpBny** decision. The ny
pointed to several matters indicating that sex was not a

1. Xn 1977, after its decision about the Complainant but 
before the Huaan Rights complaints had come to its 
attention, the Company offered to all women at the 
plant except the Complainant the opportunity to try 
Group 1 work. The only one who took advantage of the 
opportunity was Faye Newman, one of the younger and 
•ore junior women* She withdrew from the trial at 
Group 1 work in circumstances which will be discussed 
briefly below.

2. women, including the Complainant, had bean doing tally
wot k , a sified Preferential" formerly only

by 1 workers, for a period of time
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bill Ol tt the* ctom a l n i  was 111c*f! and be fo re  the

Complainant begen a g i t a t in g  f o r 1 work i n  l a t a

1976.

3

4

Tho Harbour Plant sanior lint had I (1

Wi»
to men and women everal years betoro the

aint. In contrast# re was evidence from Mr.

Nichoi that at other plants there are still different 

seniority jlists for men a nd  f o r  HttMh.

Paragraph 6*02 o* the Collective Agreement

prohibited the from requiring women to go into

the freezer# had been deleted after the complaint but 

prior to the hearing.

On the other hand# there is some evidence which 

may indicate that the Complainant's sex was a factor in 

the Company's decision:

1. e nature of the evidence from Mr. Wolkowski and Mr.
Leyland as to the s productivity - its

failure to treat the Complainant as an individual.

The Company appears to hav<- as th a t  th e

C om pla inant ' g p r o d u c t i v i t y  was low because i t  was

that p r o d u c t i v i t y  o f women as a group

was low. The re i s no ev nee to indicate that



company would hitv** i 1 its decisi regarding the
Complainant without its bslisf in hsr nssd to improve 

hsr productivity* Therefore, if sex was a factor in 

the assessment of tho Complajnant's productivity* then

i t wns a i n t h e S d e c is io n  to  remove

her from Group 1 work.

The h i s t o r y  o f  th e  d i v i s i o n  o f  labour betweri men and 

women a t  the  B .C .  Ice P l a n t  and o f  the p re v io u s  

c o l l e c t i v e  agreements i s  re le v a n t  i n  d e te rm in in g  

whether o r  no t sex was a fa c t o r  i n  the  Company's

|  i s i o n .  The General E l e c t r i c  C o rp o ra t io n  v .  

Commonwealth o f  Pennys lva n ia  case in  the  P e n n y s lv a n ia

eme C o u r t  ( 1 9 7 6 ) 1 3 E . P . D . 6024« c i t e d  to  the  Board

by the  D i r e c t o r  and the  Complainant» c o n ta in s

p e rs u a s iv e  rea son ing  t o  the  e f f e c t  t h a t  "abandoned

d i s c r im in a t o r y ices which appear to  be c a r r ie d

f  orw by new f a c i a l l y  n e u t r a l  p o l i c i e s  can be

evidence t h a t  the  f a c t o r  forme r l y  enunciated i n  the  

d i s c r i m in a t o r y  p ra c t ic e s  i s  p re s e n t  i n  th e  d e c is io n

aking." w i t h  re sp e c t  to mat ters

enumerated above (the telly work. Clause 6.02 and the 

offer to ths other women) the practice at the plant

:>t*x doe:. jobo for what pay) remains
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unchanged. I t  seems th a t  past  d l s c r lm in a to r y  

pract lcaa  may w a l l  ba having an impact on peasant 

c o n d i t io n s .

The natura o f  tha t r i a l  a t  Group 1 work g ivan to  Faye 

Newman in  June, 1979, which may be considered by t h i s  

Board in  a ttem pting to  a sc e r ta in  the Company's 

a t t i t u d e  toward women e n te r in g  Group 1, p o in t s  to  a 

le s s  than fa i r-m ind e d  approach. I t  would appear from  

the evidence th a t  i t  was something o f  a "show t r i a l ” , 

w ith  Ms. Newman assigned to  a ta sk  (unloading h a l ib u t  

from a fo u r  fo o t  h igh t o t e ,  Ms. Newman being h e r s e l f  

about f i v e  fe e t  t a l l )  which would be in h e r e n t ly  and 

un ique ly  d i f f i c u l t  f o r  someone o f  her s i z e ,  to  be 

performed w i th  an u n w i l l in g  co-worker,  be fo re  an 

amused audience. T h i s  i s  c i r c u m s ta n t ia l  evidence th a t

the Company's p o s i t i o n  was th a t  i t  was not to  be made 

any e a s ie r  than i t  had to be f o r  women to  e n te r  Group 

1.

There  was evidence t h a t ,  as might have been expected, 

the male w orke rs  a t  the P la n t  were r e lu c t a n t  to  

imagine women doing a new kind o f  work. In  h i s  

evidence, Mr. Wolkowski sa id  th a t  one Ron Massey 

s ta te d  t h a t  he d id  not want to  work w i th  a woman when



Vrt» «It! • t r u e *  w i th  h la  on tha
Ion o f  ba r

H r .  If 1 chol

‘* l  •** • U - f t i o i o  cr«*w would ba o f  low

p r o d u c t i v i t y . Th n' * o f  tha  s i t u a t i o n  and aoaa



I .  1* appear* a ls o  th a t  th *  Company's o f f e r  to  a l l  of the

woman except th *  Complainant o f  th *  o p p o rtu n i ty  to  

parfo rm  Group l  work was not mad# in  the same term* In  

which male w orker*  who had boon h i re d  by the Company 

i n  the p a s t  had been o f fe re d  Group 1 work. The women« 

already employees o f  the Company» were to ld  tha t  they 

could t r y  out f o r  Group 1 work and th a t  they would be 

expected to  perform every task in  Group 1 inc lud ing  

the very  h e a v ie s t  ones. No male worker had a 

r e c o l le c t io n  o f  being to ld  the same th in g  when he was 

h ire d »  a lthough many o f  them t e s t i f i e d  th a t  in  fa c t  

they understand th a t  they are requ ired  to perform a l l  

the ta k s  i n  Group 1. However» most o f  them do not in  

fa c t  pe r fo rm  anywhere near a l l  o f  the Group 1 ta sk s  on 

a re g u la r  b a s i s .

Ta k ing  a l l  o f  the evidence in t o  account, have the  

Complainant and the  D i r e c t o r  proved, on a balance of  

p r o b a b i l i t i e s ,  th a t  the Com pla inant 's  sex was a fa c to r  in  

the Company's d e c is io n ?  I  th in k  so, p a r t i c u l a r l y  in  the 

l i g h t  of the  evidence about the assessment o f the 

C om pla inant 's  p r o d u c t i v i t y .  She was not r e a l l y  assessed  

as an i n d i v i d u a l .  An assessment was made o f  the  

p r o d u c t i v i t y  of the women, and i t  was then assumed th a t  

the Complainant was not d i f f e r e n t .  I t  i s  th a t  kind of

- 44 -



*

•#tc''Li»r»nt which« i t  seems t o ,  the Humt n  R ig h t »  Cod« la  

designed t o  p r e v e n t .  1 conclude th a t  tha Complainant was 

viiact im lna te d  a g a in s t  by raaaon o f  sex, w i th o u t  reaaonabla

cauaa

I agree w i t h  tho H a j o r l t y  th a t  tha Complainant 

•uat ba a f fo rd a d  tha  o p p o r tu n i ty  to  perform Group 1 work 

by tha Company and ba aaaoaaod as an In d iv id u a l  on her  

performance. 1 would add th a t  her pay, from the o u t s e t ,  

should ba a t  th a  Group 1 1 ,000  hour ra ta .  Although the re  

i s  soma m e r i t  i n  the  Company's argument th a t  the  

Complainant s h o u ld  n o t  rece ive  1 ,000  hours  o f  c r e d i t  

toward Group 1 f rom having performed Group 2 work, the re  

ia more m e r i t  t o  the  argument expressed by M rs .  Lyd ia  

McKay t h a t  "a woman's s e n i o r i t y  shou ld  be worth  as much as 

a man's" * a woman who has pu t  i n  many thousands o f  hours  

at tha P la n t  i n  Group 2 and who moves i n t o  Group 1, now 

th a t  i t  i s  open t o  h e r ,  shou ld  rece ive  the pay 

coausensurate w i t h  her s e n i o r i t y  a t  the P la n t ,  e s p e c ia l ly  

in  tha l i g h t  o f  tha  evidenca th a t  the na tu re  o f  the work 

in  tha two Groups i s  s i m i l a r  in  many re sp e c ts .  I agree 

w ith  tha Majority t h a t  f u r t h e r  evidence i s  necessary to  

determine tha  amount of f i n a n c i a l  l o s s ,  i f  any, s u f fe r e d  

by tha Com pla inant as a result of tha Company's 

d l s c r i m i n a t i o n  In refusing to permit her to  cont inue Group



1 do n o t th a t  th e re  i s  s u f f i c i e n t  evidence upon

i t  can be concluded th a t  th e re  i& d i s c r im in a t io n

o r  p u r s u a n t  t o  the  C o l le c t iv e  Agreement and

tl'o (groupings In  the O n ta r io  Human s

Board case o f  Ms« Anne Col f  e r  , O n t .H .R .B « ! « # * ary

12, 1979, wh was c i te d  to  us by Counsel f o r  the

Com pla inant end th e  D i r e c t o r ,  th e re  was s t a t i s t i c a l

t o  Show th . i t  the he

police officers had a greater
requirem ent f o r

on women than on

r • and that the

o b j e c t i v e l y  j u s t i f i e d

requirement was not
T h a t  Board th a t

t b# requirement was discriminatory. in the



present < ase Olthcni'jh th«(<9 w t i  a o f  a v ld tn c t
th ro w in g  s e r i o u s  doubt upon tho o b jo c t lv o  

j u s t i f i c a t i o n  f o r  tho groupings*

'‘ t t t l l t i O ' i  l o v idoneo th a t  th o

o woo no

ro wooi a g ro a to r  Impact

on ttooan than on Bon from tho manner l i t  which tho

ttinito were «i 1 l o t t od to

r < f  9  me th a t  o i l

groups a

rn  o f

w i th  tho

l  bo ablo to

u b je c t iv o  ovidcnco asp e r fo rm  a l l  Group 1 ta s k s ,  

to  w hothcr most womon would bo oblo to  do o i l  o f  the

Group 1 task*» was in c o n c lu s iv e . Some w i tn e sse s  sa id

o o t  womon cou ld  not do tho most d i f f i c u l t  ta sk s  in

Group 1; r s  sa some women could; th e re  was

t h a t  Mr * a had* in  fact,« t r i e d

o; t  o f  th e  Group 1 lo b s .  The onus i s  on the D i re c to r

wndl the a in a n t  to  show t h a t  an o b je c t iv e ly

t r a i  re q u i re m e n t  has an in o rd in a te act on a

p a r t : ar group« and in  imy view th a t  onus was not

s a t i s f i e d «  even tho  h i s t o r y  o f  the e v o lu t io n  o f

tho  g ro u p in g s  r a i s e s  some r e a l  q u e s t io n s  in  t h i s

( i l l )

T h e re  was no p a r t i c u l a r com pla in t from an in d iv id u a l
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c o n s id e r  t h a t  th e  com pla in t  has been mad« out In  th a t  

r e s p e c t .  However, I  t h i n k  t h a t  t h «  Company's p o l ic y  

o f  r e f u s i n g  t o  pay t h «  women who w «r«  t r y i n g  ou t  f o r  

Group 1 work t h «  f u l l  1 ,000  hour ra te  was 

d i s c r i m i n a t o r y ,  as d is c u s s e d  above, and I  would order  

t h a t  t h «  Company pay Group 2 w o rk e rs  the f u l l  1 ,000  

r a t «  when the y  a t tem p t to  move I n t o  Group 1, so long

as th e y  hav« achieved the  1 ,000  hour ra te  in  Group 2. 

3. T h «  f a c t  t h a t  t h e r e  d id  not e x i s t ,  u n t i l  the c u r r e n t

C o l l e c t i v e  Agreement, a 1 ,000  hour ra te  f o r  Group 2,  

does n o t  s«em t o  me to  amount to  d i s c r i m in a t i o n

a g a in s t  th e  women in  Group 2 u n le s s  the g roup ings  

th e m se lv e s  a re  d i s c r i m i n a t o r y .  I  have concluded th a t  

t h e r e  i s  n o t  s u f f i c i e n t  evidence to  f i n d  th a t  they are  

d i s c r i m i n a t o r y .

I t  f o l l o w s  f rom  what I  have s a id  above th a t  the  

Respondent U n io n  has no t  been proved to  have d is c r im in a te d  

a g a in s t  th e  C o m p la ina n t  o r  o th e r  women in  the manner 

a l le g e d .  Th e  Com pla inant and the  D i r e c t o r  have succeeded 

a g a in s t  th e  Company in  p a r t .  However, I  agree w i th  the  

* U } o r i t y  t h a t  no c o s t s  sh o u ld  be awarded, in  a l l  the

circumstances.
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(1)

(2)

* .

Pursuant to Sections 6, 8 f. 9 of
an Rights Cod« of British Columbia.
•crimination in pay on the basis of

* *

Discrimination in employment on the basis
o f  SOX. ■ M  L i L ^ t  ‘‘.„f: U .

Discrimination in a Collective Agreement on 
the basis of sex.
Susan Jorgenson
B.C. Ice and Cold Storage Limited and 
United Fishermen and Allied Workers Union
January, February, March 1977 
and onqoina '
-Complaint Forms (2) dated April 13, 1977, 
signed by Susan Jorgensen
-Wage Rates and Protective Clause 602 from
1976 Collective Agreement

*

-Seniority List dated September 7, 1977
H —Listing — Plant Jobs,

Ice and Cold Storage Limited
by B.C

m ^Listing of dates of non-payment of Group 
rate and non-call—in on seniority basis.

9Ms. Jorgensen filed a 
that B.C. Ice and Cold 
discriminated against 
women in employment on
She alleges

complaint alleging 
Storage Limited has 

her and against a! 
the basis of sex.

*

*

opportun
e employee* are no^ ai von equalto enter the Group 1 classification

Ms. Joraensen was 
to male employees
rantiallv oimilar

not paid a wauc* enual 
for similar or subs-

M

w >  ___jensen also filed a complaint 
alleging that the United Fishermen and 
Allied Workers Union negotiated a Col­
lective Agreement that discriminates 
against her and other women employees 
denying Group 2 workers the 1,000-hour rat **(



-  2
*

t

u>

(2)

(3)

(4)

(6)

(7)

(H)

The investigation of the complaint 
revealed the following:
Susan Jorgenson has 
B.C. Ice «and Cold

10, 1975.
the company nn well

ion is and has

boon an employee of
n Limited since
nau wo 

in 1973. Her claesi 
been Group 2.

At B.C. Ice and Cold Storage Limited, all 
men are classified Group 1# all women are 
classified Group 2. Three women do Tally 
and receive a 20C per hour bonus; women 
hold no other classified or preferential 
jobs. 31 of the 35 men on the seniority 
list are classified to do Cold Storage worlij 
as well as Fresh Fish Group 1 work. 
are also Fork Lift Drivers, Graders,
Ta1ly-persons and Charge-Hands.
During March 1977, Ms. Jorgensen pulled 
Herring Racks, a task recognized by a

ies as Group 1 work. Ms. 
states that she was not counselled abouflp 
any problems with this work and that she 
suffered no physical problems as a result 
of performing this work.
Ms. Jorgensen did not receive Group 1 rate 
of pay for this work. She remained

ified as a Group 2 worker.
(5) Ms. Jorgensen requested Group 1 work and

classification at numerous times,
including February 1977.

*

On at least two occasions in April and May 
1977, men junior to Ms. Jorgensen were 
called in and wore performing work Ms. 
Jorgensen had done or could do. Seniorrs and union representatives questioned
the company about this practice to no effect

un:ci ,wviewed payroll printouts fiom
er 6, 1977 to December 31, 1977. 

Fvhibit E report» the number of days that 
M p junior to the complainant in seniority
wore called in to do work Ms. Jorgensen n. 
dons, could do, or had not been given the 
opportunity to do, and was not called in to
do.

The Of fi cer

i Plant. Managar intarviwod all wom«»nother than tha complainant#«»inj > 1 1 >yocs

• • .
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( 1 0 )

*

■
■

(11)
*

*

(1)

( 2 )
*

(3)

(4)

on Octobor 14, 1977 anil informed them of 
tha hcaw natura of the work 4n frhe Crouo 1 
classification and enauired if thev wantedto bo classi tir*d in Gronn 1. All women,

mother than the compia! n.mt, arc between 49 
and 61 years of age. The complainant is 23

4

*

The company alleges that Ms. Jorgensen has 
physical problems, or physical impairment

results in injury when she does 
Group 1 work, or places her at high 
of injury were she to do Group 1 work. 
This has not been substantiated by any 
evidence. ‘ * * *

■

* • A  • iWomen at B.C. Ice have performed work whicl 
Is clearly recognized as Group 1; Men at 
B.C. Ice perform work which is most fre­quently done by women* The distinction of 
light and heavy work, which is to be alio-

to Group 1 and Group 2 work tively, is not clear, notwithstanding the 
division of work provided by the company 
as shown in Exhibit D # . J|
k * * . *. _ ** ** *

In the Group 1 classification, filled 
by men, the hourly rate increases by 21^ 
after 400 hours and increases by another
82$ after 1,000 hours. In the Group 2 
classification, filled by women,increases by 21$ after 400 
hours. There is no further increase in
the hourly rate. •

* *

Has Ms. Jorgensen been denied and is she 
being denied eaual opportunity to perform
Group 1 work? ' I
Was Ms. Jorgensen discrimina 
in not being paid a Group 1 
being classified as a Group 1 
when she performed Grouo 1 wo

the

» again
te, orworker«

Does the Collecti 
against women cm 
Stoiage Limited bv 
thousand hour r«ne 
ci assi lx canon v

Agreement discriminate
Is at B.C. Ice and Cold

not piovi.dine a one
Group *xii

Did Clause 602 of the 1976 Collecti^HH 
ment havs • discriminatorv Impact *n employment of womun at rt.C. ice and Cota
Storage Limi tod?

Agi oc

. . .4
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( 1 ) On Pabruaiy 10 and February 2], 1978 <ha 
Human Rights Offlcor mot with ths President, 
Plant Manager and Lawyer for B.C. Tee and Cold Storage Limited in an 
bring about a settlement. •avour

On February 10, February 27, March 6 and 
March 23, 1978 the Human Rights Officer 
wrote to the company in endeavours to 
bring about a settlement, in their 
responses of February IS, February 24, 
March 1 and March 8, 1978, B.C. Ice and 
Cold Storage Limited maintained that 
they have not discriminated against 
Susan Jorgensen. It has thus not been 
possible to settle the complaint.

Kathleen Ruff



____ runiy 10 and February 21, 1973 tha
Human Right* officer mot with the President 
Plant Manager and Lawyer for b
Cold Stornyo Iilllli 1 n nn
bring about o nett lament.

'• Icf timi
savour tp

On February 10, FeDruary ¿1, March 6 and 
March 23, 1978 the Human Rights Officer 
wrote to the company in endeavours to 
bring about a settlement. In their 
responses of February 15, February 24, 
March 1 and March 8, 1978, B.c. ice and 
Cold Storage Limited maintained that 
they have not discriminated against 
Susan Jorgenson. It lias thus not been 
possible to settle the complaint.
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Section 1 - Wages

ftThe wage scales set out hereunder are the minimum scries 
classifications. Any prior commitments to individuals forof t W n  «hnvn in -this sunolecent shall be honoured
Cenerai Wage Scale - Effective April 19, 1976

» •

CLASSIFICATION
Hourly
Hate

Tine and 
One-Half 
$

Cold • •

After UOO hours 
After 1000 hours 
Charge Hand .

5.61 
• 6.77

7.56
8.02

• •

\

8.1*14
10.154
11. 3U 
12.03

l
Cro • •

• • 5.36 \ ♦ •

• •
After hOO hours 
After 1000 hours 
Crader 
Tallyman 
Charge Hand *

a«

7.3**
7.67
7.67
8.02

t• •
*

6
9

11
11

12

ou ••
78
Ò1
50*5
504
03

w -  . W

.p Croup 2 — Fresh Fish Lin Workers

* ♦
« « 1976.).

Double
Time

11
13
15
16

• « 
%

10.72
13.0U
1U.68
15-3*»

' 15.3U
16. OU

•  mStart * 9 e • - ,  •  5.57 ■ .  ; 8.354 11. lU
;  After 1*00 hours - ,

f t
. *6773 . •  ; 10.094• •  •  V  .  .

13.1*6
•  *

1i *  Fillcters
« t  •

•

•

•
•

a
, a  *  •  •

•  •
•

•  m •

•  O

*
ft i  •

»  %

•  «  

Inexperienced i 6.73 10.094 .  13.1*6
“  Semi-Quailfled 6.91 . 10.364 13.82
Qualified 7.13 ■ 10.694 l l * .  26

-  Qualified (Effective June 28, 7.18 10.77 11*. 36

For every hour or najor portion of an hour enployed driving "Jeeps" Jeep 
. driver» shall receive.ten cents (lOtf) per hour in addition to their regular 
* rate of pay. Employees enployed driving Jeeps for nore than four hours in 

any particular day shell receive the ten cents per hour preniua for the 
entire day. Jeep Drivers who work both in and out of cold storage shall 
receive the cold storage rate.(JBWr** * 2   ̂ * «• • i # *# •Aa employe« who is employed es fresh fish tallyrar. but vbo does not have the 
ability to grade fish, or an employeV empToyVd "as tallyman on a temporary 
basis, shall be paid twenty cents (?0tf) per hour ir» addition to the regular 
wage rate for all hours actually employed as tallyman.



i l

19

*

20

21

22

23 *

* H

-  G - f é * • « i  •
# ■oriAnt r^nioritv riA t

\

U.f.
In W O ^ n l v i o n  of ditjforlnj j»robl(Mi vliich «rito o#i sonlorlty and thè 
de* Ire of bovh l'artico io bava aaniority appliod in v«y whlch lo 
rottonobU, ^alr ami understondable, encouraycnent s.iall be givcn to thè 
vuiking CH.it et a plcnt oeniorlLy pian, nnd suedi pian irtien mutuali/ ¡igearci 
upoa aliali bc eonsi«!« red as part of thla ¡¿ostar Agreement.
¡>etings to discuss plant soniorit 
of an existing pian or for drafting

of the plant) f'..a 11 be held 
or Sho> Steward Coaiitt

l>l/ins either In the way of firaindcent 
a plan of coverage for the plant (or 
ot tic request of ei tiler management

* • • t ■ 1 -During discussion and negotiation, of plant seniority plan, every effort 
shall be made by both parties, subject to proper consideration of overall, 
problems§ and to peculiar problems which tiay~e>:ist in the plant to include 
as many employees and classifications as possible in each seniority group! 
to the and that os few seniority groupings as practicably possible are

*

^ 4
4

*  *

During discussion of plant seniority plan the question of seniority 
Oetcr^ning the erder of call-out for overtime work, should such problem 
exist in a >lant, shall also be discussed. Ccll-out for overtime shall 
be on a basis equitable to the ¡.ĉ ibers of the regular crew, capable of 
doing ?.ht- war!; required. Any unjustified deviation frou this practice 
or any problem arising on overtine calif-out phAll be discussed between 
S!iô  Steward Catnittcs and Lianagemcnt. . % fl
Plant Seniori ■

T;*e Oo.-.pany shall prepare end maintain a seniority list for the plant on
the besis of the condi t i o n  is set forth in this Article* • Vhc plant
seniority list snail 'orovido tfie.bs.sis for lay-offs and hiring whether O -
a sporadic or sea^onnl nature, subject to the conditions or tnis Article*
a *  list shall be amended ao new employees qualify for seniority and as
employees are dropped fron seniority listing. Should »d3til»cs or
discrepancies occur in ouch list, ouch uistakec or discrepancies shall
be discussed betwee.* f ie Shop Steward Coroittee and the management with*

• *a view to correctir*^ same. . • t .* * * * • * +
ant., seniority life viall h a  cwcilablc to the She* Steward Conraittee 

or ¡Icadou&rters o l  the t»nion upon request »nd shall elso be *oste in a
y.ie
CO *

*

Any diopijvc in rogirJ to A 
discussions between .wn^c 
or between Hc\w«,uorleri# oi^^ 
under the Grievance 44rocedure

is 5, Seniority, which cannot 
Ann till Shop Steward Co<»n-iifti 
Onion and the Company « snail
heroin*

be settled \n 
; at the plant
oe *  4  lWit-1

JUiTicLy 6 •• no~s;it*o co niiTioj

/hen not Colne uo
Ao m m Si */Mk M  instructs

rl; covered by tholr own classification shall
*j * \ UltU lJ<- •

V



U l*> i 1 % a» i y u
til VK>I V \t) 1 OM itt

ft * T I CHX i cii»i 11 cwployooa rst Ij
UtC 1*0011 , }n i old

— —I.—------ —

1 \»X i « <1

Hol iof t'.'l ioj|

A iclioC pot io;| of fiJtoon .linutoi in tho Mernlnf Ar.i3 fiftotn minute» 
in ; \c Afternoon shall um aHuic^S to «11 employ»©* Without pey deduction 
such tost peiiou* to bt .M clone to 10*00 A*n« «no 3.00 p.n. «» possible 
Con»ii«er«t ion should bs Qiven ;o advancing the first relief psriod 
section» oC a d?4Kirtinent ln tho event of «n CArly cel out.

*

H ^ H o v c r t i f f »  be worked. « ninllar rest period shall be allcr ed two (2) 
boors after ccrmcnceiflcnt of overtiro providing tire %/orh to os done cannot 
be cOf\>\ctoJ in tv;o and one-hnlf liourc or less,

^  1 _  _  L / A
control of the Cossanv,

»■»

usually taken 
subject to corrective

If fj ency conOi t
Cl IS

«  •arise wh* * _ _ * • are t atthe itanagonant tray vary 
Any abuse of this Article by cither Tarty 
actio n  by tire Shop Steward C o m i t t c e ^ H

t'r.*c
1 * * -+

# • *

rest ;
be I

*

When cold storage i»,"%>lo>tcs Arc required to loci railway cars or 
co do other heavy vorlt outside of cold storage# those who have been so 
occupied shell be allowed an adequate period to cool off | 
required to re-enter low temperature rociAS. In d e t e m i n i n g  the length

off period it is agreed employees should not go into low
*11 .n i-M f >> ne»rr liratior. D O !

of

es v/nen t-icy £*
be required to enter cold

they

c*e
sr.it t without

be required to work over five (5) hours In any or ?
iior ;

Time and
between ir..mo<

of meal per iods shall be deteruined in consultation 
and crew through the Shop Steward Cocrxittee.

irnen#hour is given# employtes
lergsney reasons, a jneul period less tnan one

chiill - * j o  PAiti for r ’ *  1
k m m i  —  V  -m> -

r ir
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% t

C R A I G ,  K e n M

M U L P O N E Y ,  L a r r y M

F I O R A N T E ,  B e n M

B O D N A R ,  C a r e y M

J O R G E N S E N ,  S u s a n Fm

B L I G H T ,  B i l l M

H U N T E R ,  W a r r e n M
R O Y ,  J . f M

S T O R N E S S - B L I S S ,  N . M

D O c J R O W O L S K Y ,  John M
H O U G H A M ,  D . M
W I L S O N ,  J i m M



*#

i  i C h a r y e  I *

ê rorklifl • i
K  * * .
m  T aU y P crson  —  F resh  F lsh  ‘ .

.  * T a lly  -  F o r  T ô le s  & Soxw>g
m F irs t  A id  Attendant * .
T  i

m

(8> P. I ■ 1

H E A V Y  (G roup 1 )

Boat Unloading  
>ch

Head *

Unload R
PI ale F

(F r)
ree?e

■ 1
Halibut Handling 
Chip Ice f  Snow

& d l H H H i

Line and .M ove T o te s
•sh to G la se r

T otes
i ij r  ^

R ep air  T o t e s /  Fallet

LJGH1! (Group 2 )

Pick Roe

W ash

C lean-up (  Light) 
Boxing Line — 1. ing

2 . St
3.
4 . Bagging

ETnd of gl line ( i l  r

*



October 12 27 
October 13 28 
October 14 27
October

October
October

October
October

18
19
20 
21 
22 
24
26
27I I
29
31

21 working

9
20
26
19
3

17
17
18
22
29
3
31

s :

*  *  •

S.J. worked
S • J • A 43, Purdon J & G,

2 days S.J. not working when junior men worked.

/

November 1 33 Purden, J & G, 41, 43
S.J. - A

November 2 30 41, 43, Purden J & G,
November 3 28 (6 4 on

niqht) 41, 43
November 4 33 41,43, Purdon J 6 G
November 7 36 S.J. worked
November 18 37 S.J. worked
November 9 37 S.J. worked
November 10 -- 39 S.J. worked
November 12 3
Novotnber 14 41 S.J.-H day only (as o

Matinovich

S.J.

November 15 42

November 16 1 *f 494 ai*ovci iiru>er
Move rber

1 / 
18 46

November 19 13
November 21 48
tt(> veRi’ j 22 49

wber 23 f t

Nova ob or 24 48
November 25 49

had 8 h + overtime; 
Plouffe, Waller,
Cameron, Tinsdell, Anderson 
S.J. - L.O.; Purdon J & G,

ton, Brown, McCrae, etc. 
det ailed report on 15th re

^^^Ijunior men 
37,41,43,Creansa

, 41. 43,
Plouffc

S.J. - A
S.J. A
S.J. 4M L.O

S.J. — A
S v w ft A
h) ft % * « • L.O
S.J. • W • 0
S.J. — f •. o

37,41,43 ♦

)7,4lj43'+ (detailed repot



Kktnck V

L.
A .

L .

W .

T .  F
M .
K . M A N H 4 S  
W . G U R M E V

. D U / V A Y

0.
C .

W .  H U N T E R  

J .  R O Y

*

(Sc fisonal)

(S ea so n a l)

4asonal)
*

I«# ■# # rip 4H ik ^

w

*

1952

1957
25  Jul 69
05 Sep

* *
20  vKj) 70  
02 Jul 71 
04 S ep  71 

Aug 72
26 Aug 72

72
24 Jul 75  
C9 A /=r 76  
C3 M ir  76  
CS M i r  76

R .  D U M K A  

P .  B O D N A R  

M .  F E D I U K  

L .  N A P P E R

M  ■
K .  M i A N H A S  

W .  D U M A Y

*

*

(Backup)

*(Backup) +

1956

25  Jul 69  
02 Jul 71 
04 Sep 71 
2 8 A\ g

*

L .  J A C K S O N  

L .  M e  K A Y  '

L
*

*

(Eackup)

■

25  Jul
lO 75

L .

L .
V,v  •
L. M U

Jul 69  
07 M + r  72
19



*

, November .'6 9
November 21 
November 29 
November 30

45
48
50

S.J.S.J.
S.J.

■* L. 0 •
— I« • 0 •
- L.O.

24 woikiwg days 
called in. ■ 17 (lays S.i7. not \ #«/ork i ng

December 1 
December 2 
December 3 
December 5

55 
4 7
7 (I'd 4 hr) 45

S.J.S.J. 
S.J. 
R * J »

w . Ü .
— L.O.
— not
— L.O.

and junior men were

ca] 1 od in /
December 6 
Do comber I

24

«

December

December 33

December 15

December
D o'*
rxDece 
Dr

*r 
r 
r

m b  e r  2  3

7 10
cn still o
8 309 33

*  m

10
*

11
12 35
13 43

14 42

15 44

16 43
19 42
20 33
21 27
22 — 19

:o 7 Dec, NOT on printout Dec 8.
(note 37,43,40, 35 all in - S.J. is 
137 in, #41 in & cjot 1000 hr shed 
cold rate (7.99) (7.76)
#43 - cold rate + non-seniority - Purdon, G.
Purdon, J & G, + 37,40,43,41,Cameron, 
Creanza, McRae, Baldwin 
Purdon, J & G, 37, 40,41,43, Cameron, 
Creanza, McRae, Waller, Shields, 
Baldwin, Gore, Jacobson
Purdon, J & G, 37,38,40,41,43, Cameron (fork),
Ansdel1, icanza, McRae, Walker,

n
Purdon J fi G, 37, 40, 41,43, Creanza,McRae, , Shields, Baldwin, 

, Jacobsen, WalkerMarsden,
Purdon J & G etc,
Purdon J & G etc.
37 (fork), 38,40,41,43, Walker

-16
December 28 15 38, 43
DecemL* r 29 15 38, 43
December 30 14 38, 43
December summary: I of days worked
H  Jorgensen called in - 14.c

.  J

21; f ddys men junior to

TOTAL king days
sen

________________________  _______________  2 1
s S. Jorgensen did not 

work 4 junior men were called in:2

r vember Decerr
24 21
17 14

Estimated wages I x 33 x 7.76 $2048.64



ÎMÊCt ion G Equal Pay Complaint Susan Jorgensen v. B.C 
and Cold Storage

ï cr*

Date
*

Hours

.

*

19 March
S18 March 

17 March 
16 March 
15 March 
14 March

13 March 
12 March

11 March

8
8
8
8
8
8
2
8
8
2
8
0 . 2

Overtime
ight time

time
ight time 

Straight time

/

ight ti
Overtime
Double time
Overtime 
Double time
Straight time 
Overtime

1976 CONTRACT RATES
GP*11-400 hr/rate GP. 1-1000 Differential

time: 7.34/hr

10. 11.01/hr .91/hr
Double 
time : 13.46/hr

48 hours 
18.2 hours 
10 hours

—*
«

14.68/hr

at straight time 
at overtime 
at double time

29.28
16.56
12.20

$58.04
. 1.# *  •

2.

I « not included since inight shift differential is 
was added to all workers rates.
It is acknowledged by all parties that some time w 
spent by the complainant on day shift doing Group 1 
work; this is not included.


